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BE | T REMEMBERED t hat t he above-entitled and
nunbered matter cane on to be heard before the Arizona
Power Pl ant and Transm ssion Line Siting Commttee, at
the Confort Suites Goodyear, 15575 West Roosevelt Road,
Goodyear, Arizona, commencing at 1: 03 p.m on the 24th

of Septenber, 2019.

BEFORE: THOVAS K. CHENAL, Chairman

LAURI E A. WOODALL, Arizona Corporation
Conmi ssi on

LEONARD C. DRAGO, Departnent of Environnental
Quality

JOHN R RIGA NS, Arizona Departnent of Water
Resour ces

MARY HAMMY, | ncorporated Cities and Towns

JIM PALMER, Agricultural Interests

PATRI CI A NOLAND, GCeneral Public

JACK HAENI CHEN, General Public

KARL CGENTLES, CGeneral Public

APPEARANCES:
For the Applicant:

SNELL & WLMER, L.L.P.

By M. Matthew Derstine

One Arizona Center

400 East Van Buren, Suite 1900
Phoeni x, Ari zona 85004

and

PI NNACLE WEST CAPI TAL CORPORATI ON
Law Depart nent

By Ms. Linda Benally, Senior Attorney
400 North Fifth Street

Phoeni x, Ari zona 85004
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CHWN. CHENAL: All right. Good afternoon,
everyone. M nane is Tom Chenal. | chair the Line
Siting Comm ttee.

This is the tinme set for the hearing to begin on
t he application of Arizona Public Service Conpany for a
certificate of environnental conpatibility authori zing
the Wl dcat and Cycl one transm ssion |ine project and
other facilities.

May we have appear ances, please, starting with
the applicant, M. Derstine or Ms. Benally.

MS. BENALLY: Good afternoon, Chair Chenal,
Comm ttee nenbers. Linda Benally, in-house counsel at
APS, along with Matt Derstine from Snell & WI mer
representi ng the conpany.

CHWN. CHENAL: Al right. Thank you very nuch.

And then, M. Enedi.

MR. EMEDI: Stephen Enedi on behalf of the
Ari zona Cor poration Conm ssi on.

CHWN. CHENAL: Very good.

Let's have a roll call of the nenbers of the
Comm ssion, starting with Menber Noland this tine.

MEMBER NCLAND: Patricia Noland representing the
publi c.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Jack Haeni chen, al so
representing the public.

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ
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MEMBER CGENTLES: Karl CGentles, representing the
publi c.

MEMBER WOODALL: Laurie Wodall, representing
the Chairman of the Arizona Corporation Comm ssion,
Robert Burns.

MEMBER HAMMY: Mary Hamnay, representing cities
and towns.

MEMBER PALVMER: Jim Pal mer, representing
agricul ture.

MEMBER DRAGO. Len Drago, representing the
Ari zona Departnent of Environnental Quality.

MEMBER RIGA NS: John Riggins, director designee
for the Arizona Departnent of Water Resources.

CHWN. CHENAL: All right. Thank you very much.

So a standard adnonition that we al ways give at
t he begi nning of the hearings is to please ask --
obvi ously, the applicant and the intervenor wll address
that in a nonment -- understand that we as a Comm ttee
cannot speak with the public or wiwth any of the
applicants or parties about any of the matters, you
know, before the Comm ttee, other than in the context of
t he heari ng.

So if you cone up and talk to one us, we wll
certainly talk to you about the weat her, about how | ousy
the Cardinals are, but we can't talk to you about the

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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application or anything relating to the application. So
| just want to advise you of that. It is not a -- don't
take it personally, but, you know, that's just, that's a
serious violation. So we can't do that.

First order of business is the notice of
intervention on behalf of Arizona Corporation Conm ssion
filed by M. Enedi on behalf of the Comm ssion. That
notice of intervention is intervention by right under
our statute. So the Corporation Conmi ssion is an
intervenor in this action, and will have the rights of
any ot her party to exam ne w tnesses, Cross-exani ne,
make argunent, opening statenents, closing, you know,
statenments as you wi sh, M. Enedi.

MR. EMEDI : Thank you, Chairnman.

CHWN. CHENAL: W will have public conment
tonight -- better check what tinme -- 5:30. W were at
6:00 at the hearing we had | ast week in Flagstaff. So
5:30 this evening we will have public coment in case
anyone was interested in speaking tonight to the
Comm ttee.

But we are very flexible in taking public
comrent frominterested citizens and elected officials
during the course of the proceedings. So we work peopl e
in to, you know, accommodate their schedule. |If they
t hi nk highly enough to give comment, we want to hear it.

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ
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And so we will hear them whenever we can, after a break,
before, you know, before we begin a session, whatever.
| don't believe, based on the neetings we had,
the prefiling neeting and the preconference hearing we
held, that there is any issue regardi ng disclosure of

exhibits or witness summaries or anything |ike that

between the intervenor and the applicant. | am
hearing -- | am seeing a no shake of the head, for the
record.

MR. EMEDI: Yeah, thank you, M. Chairnman.
There is no issues fromthe Comm ssion's perspecti ve.

CHWN. CHENAL: And fromthe applicant's
per specti ve.

MS. BENALLY: There are no issues, Chair.

CHWN. CHENAL: GCkay. Very good.

I have not received any |limted appearance
statenents, which is another way that citizens, persons,
can provide comment about a particul ar application by
statute. They can provide witten statenment. | have
not seen any from anybody, and | don't think the docket
reflects any were filed. So we will take public comment
as | indicated, but | don't have any |limted appearance

statenents.

Is there any -- before we begin the opening
statenments -- and | wll start wth the applicant, and
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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then M. Enedi on behalf of the intervenor -- does the
Conm ttee have any questions?

Yes, Menber Wodal | .

MEMBER WOCDALL: | had a question, and that is
whet her or not the costs for the project that are
reflected in the application include the substation
costs. And | would appreciate it if that could be
addressed during the presentation of whatever wtness.

Al so, on page B-3 of the application, there is a
reference to a small conmmunications facility. And I
woul d be interested in knowi ng exactly what that is.
Thank you.

MR. DERSTINE: M. Chairman, Menber Wodall, |
Wl just address your first question up front. W wll
cover costs in the case presentation, but to let you
know up front, the costs that are set forth in the
application and that will be covered by M. Larsen are
just for the transm ssion facilities. The application
covers the transm ssion facilities.

W wll tal k about and show you where the
substations are | ocated, but as we have done in other
cases, the application itself is not asking for coverage
for the substations. They are being sited through --
well, the one property is zoned industrial. They are
having their Goodyear permtting process. And so the

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ
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application does not include the substations, per se,
but we will talk about them

MEMBER WOODALL: OCkay. And so the definition of
transm ssion lines does not include substations?

MR. DERSTINE: That's right.

MEMBER WOODALL: Ckay. Thank you very much.

CHWN. CHENAL: All right. Any procedural
matters that -- | am asking the applicant and the
intervenor if there are any procedural matters that we
shoul d discuss prior to the opening statenent. | am not
seei ng any.

Just in ternms of -- | should address one thing.
In terns of the length of this hearing, | nean we have
tal ked about it, I think we are expecting that we w |
make progress today. Tonorrow norning we will have a

tour; it won't be quite as |l engthy as some other tours

we have taken. We will take sonme nore testinony
tonorrow. | think we will work our way into Thursday,
as | have indicated before. | just think we operate a

little better if we are getting towards the end of an
afternoon to, you know, start fresh the next norning and
start with the deliberations for the CEC

So dependi ng on when we conpl ete tonorrow,
assunm ng we do, naybe we wll take a break then and
start with the deliberations on Thursday. W may not

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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finish tonorrow and we will go into Thursday. Then we
w |l conplete the process Thursday, unless there is any
unexpected matters that | am unaware, but based on the
conversations and neetings we have had, | think we
anticipated this will finish up Thursday.

As | indicated, there will be a tour tonorrow.
W will talk about that later. | know that's part of
your presentation.

So unless there is anything further, naybe we
shoul d now begin with the opening statenent of the
applicant. And | don't know who is going to be doing
that, Ms. Benally, if it is going to be you, or if it is
going to be M. Derstine.

MS. BENALLY: M. Derstine wll do the opening
for APS.

CHWN. CHENAL: Al right. Thank you very nuch.

MR. DERSTINE: Just nake sure | amdriving ny
| aser pointer the right direction here. GCot it.

Well, good afternoon, M. Chairman, nenbers of
the Commttee. | know you were in Flagstaff |ast week
for a case, and we appreciate you com ng back to Phoeni x
and being here today to hear our case on a fairly short
turnover. So thank you.

This is the first transm ssion line siting case
that Arizona Public Service Conpany has had before the

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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Commttee for a couple years. But it is certainly not
new to the process. The history of APS dates back to, |
want to say, 1886, sonething like that, where the
Phoeni x Il lum nating Gas and Electric Conpany lit the
first lights on Washington and Center Street in downtown
Phoeni x. Center Street is now Central Avenue. This
photo is fromthat tine franme; although, it is not

Washi ngton and Center. But you can see the utility
pol es there and the horse-drawn street trolleys.

Today APS is Arizona's largest electric utility.
It has nore than 34,000 mles of transm ssion |ines. | t
serves 11 of Arizona's 15 counties and has sonewhere
around 1.2 mllion retail and whol esal e custoners.

Anong the areas that APS serves include the
nmetropol i tan Phoeni x area. APS s service territory is
shown on this map in white, and non- APS served areas are
in the darker shaded portions of that netro Phoeni x map.

What you see fromthe map is that APS serves
much of the west vall ey of Phoeni x, and including the
City of CGoodyear where we are today. Mich of the west
vall ey, the history of the west valley was | argely
farmand. And there is fair anounts of farm and stil
here today. But in fact the Cty of Goodyear gets its
nane fromits farmng history.

In 1917, the Goodyear Tire and Rubber Conpany

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ
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set out a junior executive by the nane of Paul
Litchfield to Arizona to acquire land to grow cotton.
Goodyear was using a long-strand cotton fiber in
producing its tires at the tine, and it cane to Ari zona
and pl anted hundreds of acres of cotton fields so it had
a reliable supply of cotton for those tires.

So the community that grew up around those
Goodyear cotton farm becane the Town of Goodyear and now
the Gty of Goodyear. And Litchfield Park, naned after
Paul Litchfield, was the corporate headquarters for the
Goodyear farms.

So it goes wthout saying that a | ot has changed
since the early 1900s, and maybe not hi ng exenplifies
that nore than the fact that the west valley, which
attracted the Goodyear Tire and Rubber Conpany in the
early 1900s to cone here and grow cotton to nake tires,
is now attracting conpanies |like Mcrosoft to cone here
and build data centers.

I mssed ny Goodyear farmslide there. There it

It mght be an interesting aside to know t hat
t he community whi ch becane known as Goodyear was
originally called, naned Egypt, because the cotton that
was planted here was the sane type that was grown in
Egypt. And the supply from Egyptian cotton got tied

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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during World War |, and so they cane here to source it
and grow it thensel ves.

So cotton farmng to data centers. |In 2018
M crosoft announced that it acquired approximtely 274
acres of land to build a |large data center, this site
right here in yellow on the screen to the left. And not
|l ong after, Stream Data Centers announced that it had
acquired around 175 acres of land to build its own data
center, and the data center is shown on the map here
shaded i n bl ue.

These aren't the only two data centers that are
nmoving to the valley. Vantage Data Centers announced it
has acquired 50 acres in Goodyear. Conpass Data Centers
has announced it as acquired 200 acres in Goodyear. And
M crosoft has purchased two additional sites to
construct data centers, one in Goodyear and one in E
M r age.

So why are they com ng here?

Despite the fairly unusual and heavy rai nstorm
that we had yesterday, Arizona doesn't suffer many of
t he natural disasters that other parts of the country
do. Natural disasters interrupt data center operations.

W have a |l ot of affordable and open | and. Mich
of that farmland that was originally planted by
Goodyear Tire and Rubber Conmpany may still be avail abl e,

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ
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and there is other agricultural | and.

We have affordable and reliable electricity from
our utilities here in the State of Arizona. W have
access in the Phoenix area to a major fiber-optic cable
network that runs from California, and parts of its nmain
trunk cone right through Phoeni x.

You have a fairly pro growth state and | ocal
government. W have tax incentives and ot her neasures
that state and communities |i ke Goodyear have enacted to
encour age high tech conpanies to cone here. And we have
a strong | abor narket, relatively cheap but educated
| abor force.

Data centers are, however, unique utility
custoners. They use | arge anmounts of electricity to
power and cool the servers that sit within these
i ndustrial buildings. The size of data centers, if you
read about them is oftentines described in terns of the
|l oad in megawatts, announcenent that Vantage is buil ding
a 50 negawatt data center or a 100 negawatt data center,
or a 200 negawatt data center. And that |oad profile is
generally flat. Data centers operate 24 hours a day,
seven days a week, and they strive to follow the rul e of
the five nines, and that is to be operational
99. 999 percent of the tine.

So let's talk a little about this project and

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ
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maybe start with the nanme gane a little bit. This is
the Wl dcat and Cycl one 230kV |ine transm ssi on project.
Those nanes, W/l dcat and Cyclone, are used to refer to
the custoners; Mcrosoft is Wldcat, Streamis Cycl one.

And those were the project nanes that were used
at the stage before Mcrosoft and Streamwere ready to
announce their projects, but they were in discussions
w th APS about how to serve them how they could be
served, whether or not there were options for serving
these projects fromthe sites that they were exam ning
or had purchased. So we will -- we are trying to be
consistent in terns of using the WIldcat and Cycl one
terms in referring to the project sites, but at tines
you may hear us say M crosoft, which is Wldcat, or
Stream which is Cycl one.

| have been confused by those names for a nunmber
of months. | finally think | have themfairly straight
in mnd. So if there is a question, please |let us know.

The project location, you can see fromthe map
t hese data center canpuses, as | nentioned, are nestl ed
right up next to each other. They are nei ghbors. They
are located in the Gty of Goodyear. They are near to
t he Goodyear Phoenix Airport. You can see the, at |east
part of the airport operations or |ands here. And this
general area is planned for future commercial and

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ
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i ndustrial use. And there is an ADOT pl anned freeway
corridor that's comng through this area as well.

We al ways tal k about purpose and need for
transm ssi on projects. The purpose is pretty basic:

How do you provide reliable power to these two data
centers? It is the need that's uni que.

| nmentioned that data centers need and use a | ot
of electricity. Mcrosoft, at full buildout, is
projecting a |l oad of 270 negawatts, and Streamis
projecting a | oad of 350 negawatts at full buil dout.

That | oad eclipses, actually doubles the existing |oad
that's being served by APS in the Goodyear area.

The 69kV systemthat generally is the feeder and
serves the Goodyear area can't handle that | oad, so we
are going to need to connect to a 230kV line. And the
cl osest 230kV line is right here, the PalmValley-Rudd
230kV line. And you will see a nunber of colors here by
PalmVvalley | believe, and M. Spitzkoff wll wap ne in
nmy knuckles if | get it wong, but |I think on one side
it is a 500kV line and on the other side it is a 230kV
line. So that's where we need to get in order to plug
t hese data centers into the size of a transm ssion line
that's adequate to serve the | oad of these two new
cust oners.

The application presents three routes, a

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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preferred route and two alternatives. The second
alternative, this route here with all the |inks running
down, that was considered as kind of the early project
desi gn of how we woul d serve these projects. And when
we -- at an early neeting with the Chairman, we

concei ved of these projects as separate. | think

Cycl one, Stream Data Centers, was on a sl ower

devel opnment trajectory than Mcrosoft. And we had

pl anned initially to serve themor to present them as
two separate CEC applications. And then as we got
closer it appeared that we m ght conbine the cases, the
two CEC applications.

And ultimately through the public process and
refinenent of the engineering and the design for those
projects, we brought forward the preferred route and the
first alternative route, which served both projects with
much | ess inpact, put considerably nore of the
facilities onto the data center sites and canpuses and
sinply are better routes. And they allowed us to
conbine themin a single application.

We think the preferred route is the best route
because it maxi m zes the placenent of the project on the
data center land. You can see here what we are | ooking
out over the left screen is the preferred route. And
you can see that, rather than sonme of the initial |inks

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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we | ooked at running al ong Broadway Road either on the
north or the south side -- that's here, Broadway -- what
we have done is, through discussions with Mcrosoft and
Stream and | ooking at different ways to serve these
projects, put much of the line onto their | and.

At the sane tine, we have got to get fromthese
sites and the substation TS-15 and TS-18 down to the
Pal m val | ey-Rudd Iine. So one way or another we are
going to have to get to the south and cross this
agricultural |and here.

Again, we think the preferred route is the best
route to do that. You wll hear testinony that the
Alternative Route 1 is not much different. It throws a
| eg al ong Broadway and drops down to the south there. |
think there is possibly sone advant ages, but there is
al so di sadvantages to that route, and you wi |l hear
t esti nony about that.

Qur application asks for a 500-foot corridor.
We are nodifying that request a bit to expand and ask
for a 850-foot corridor, but only with respect to the
portion of the project that's on the data center
property. These projects are under devel opnent. Having
a wider corridor in our CEC gives us the opportunity to
be nore flexi ble and accommpdat e t he devel opnent needs
and t he devel opnent process of both M crosoft and

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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Stream

The right-of-way basic request is for a 120-foot
corridor. | think there are portions where we could
shrink down our right-of-way to 100 feet, but in general
we wll be asking for the 120-foot corridor for this
230kV | i ne.

The project cost ranges fromroughly 4 mllion,
approximately 4 mllion, to 6.5 mllion. And as
Ms. Whodall is always the careful reader of these
applications, these costs only address the transni ssion
lines. They don't address the substation costs.

It is inportant, | think, to point out, however,
and get to the topic of who pays the cost. These
projects are being built to serve custoners. Therefore,
they fall under the APS |ine extension policy. And
under that policy Mcrosoft and Stream are advanci ng or
payi ng the cost to build this project.

And as wth, you know, residential subdivisions
and ot her projects that are built under the line
extension policy, there is an opportunity for that
custoner to get refunded sonme anount of noney over tine
dependi ng on the revenues. In this case, it is going to
be based on transm ssi on revenue al one. And
M. Spitzkoff wll testify in greater detail about the
APS | ine extension policy and how that works. Only sone
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of the facilities are eligible for refund, and that
refund nmechanismis based on a tine period and, as |
sai d, revenue.

Envi ronnental conpatibility. The project is
| ocated within an existing industrial utility hub. And
| think by utility hub we nean you have a nunber of high
voltage transm ssion |lines down there. Not only do you
have the Pal m Val |l ey 230/ 500kV, but TEP, | believe, has
a 500 or a 345kV line down here. There are a nunber of
hi gh voltage transm ssion lines just to the south of the
pr oj ect .

And as | nentioned, this site is already zoned
industrial. And as | understand it, M. Petry will talk
about this in greater length, Mcrosoft went through a
pl anned area devel opnent rezoning of its project. But
this is generally planned to be industrial, conmmerci al
property. And as | nentioned, ADOT has plans for a
future freeway com ng t hrough here.

We think that all the route alternatives result
in mnimal environnental inpacts given the total
environnent of this area. And we think all route
alternatives are environnentally conpati bl e.

At the end of the case we will ask you to grant
us a CEC to construct single circuit 230kV lines to
I nterconnect the two planned 230kV substations that are
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| ocated on the data center canpuses follow ng the
preferred route.

Agai n, corridor width we are requesting, and
wll cover in sone depth with M. Larsen, is 500 to 850
feet. We are going to construct the project on steel
nmonopol e and Hfrane structures. W wll talk alittle
bit about why we are using Hfranes. There are certain
aspects of the project that require an Hfrane
structure. And the heights are going to range from 130
to 190 feet.

We are going to present our case through the
three wtnesses you see here at the end. M. Spitzkoff,
and he has a title that covers so many things that | can
never commt it to nenory, but he is essentially in
charge of transm ssion planning of APS, and | will | et
himrattle off his entire long title. M. Larsen has
been with Arizona Public Service Conpany for a | ong
time, and he is the project manager for this project.
And Devin Petry is with the Environnental Planning
Group, and he is the senior environnmental planner who
assisted with this project along with others at EPG

In other cases we have used a w tness panel, but
we haven't really used them as a panel discussion. And
that is present one wtness, and they go through their
slide deck, and then we nove to the next witness and go
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t hrough their slide deck.

What we have tried to do here -- and we think is
effective and we hope you will find it effective -- is
to break up our case presentation and the slide decks
t hat were prepared and sponsored by each witness into
kind of chapters or sections, and we will nove between
the w tnesses depending on the topic. And there may be
certain topics in which we will focus one w tness, but
the other witness nay want -- one or nore of the other
W tnesses nmay contribute. W think that's an effective
way to present it and that's our plan.

So what we have done is we have prepared, and,
you know, | wll talk about the i Pads here in a m nute,
but we have put together the reshuffled deck of the
Power Point slides in the manner in which we intend to
present them And that's found on your iPad, and I
thi nk we al so have hard copies available if you want
one.

But that is how we plan to present our case,
using this wtness panel. It won't be one wi tness, then
wtness No. 2, witness No. 3. W wll nove between the
W t nesses, and you will have on your iPad in front of
you ki nd of the way, the manner in which we present and
broke up up their slides into chapters.

W will have a Google Earth flyover sinulation,
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which will give you an aerial view of the routes. You
have seen these, been on this Conmttee before and you
have seen these Google Earth flyover simulations. W
have one that, | think, gives you a better

under st andi ng, certainly, than sitting here today and

| ooking at a static map on what the projects and the
routes will look Iike. And we also have a route tour

pl anned where, if you are interested, we will go to take
you out and to show you the routes.

Sonme of the nenbers of our team went out and did
that route tour this norning. W think it is val uable.
| think it gives you nuch greater insights in terns of
what things |look |ike actually on the ground. And we
woul d encourage you, if you can, to do that. | know not
all the nenbers -- a route doesn't work for everyone,
but, you know, if you are able to join us for a route
tour, we are ready to do that, and will preview that for
you this afternoon if we have tine.

We are trying to cut down on the anount of
environnmental inpacts that these cases create, so we
present our materials on the i Pad that you have in front
of you. And this mght be a good opportunity for ne to
have Kevin Duncan cone up and just orient you to what
you can find on the i Pad and where it is.

MR. DUNCAN. Thank you, M. Derstine.
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M. Chairman, nenbers of the Commttee, | just
want to take a nonent to orient you to the iPad.

Can you go ahead and unfreeze that.

So this is the screen as it appeared when you
opened it. But if by chance you have resuned the hone
screen, which |looks like this, all you need to do is
click on books, and it takes you back to this page.

You wll see that there are five docunents
there, starting with the first one that is the
application. Just sinply need to click on any of these,
it will open it for you to review. The second one is
t he suppl enental packet. The third one is the slides
that M. Derstine referenced, which are ordered as they
will follow in our presentations over the next severa
days.

The final two docunents are information on the
corridor maps which wll be discussed later in
testinony. The first is the preferred map. The second
is our preferred route -- excuse ne. Second is the
alternative.

And as you open these docunents, all you need to
do is slide your finger to go back and forth. It wll
take you to the next page. dicking on it will allow
you to click on the arrow in the upper |eft-hand corner
whi ch takes you back to the document pages.
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In addition, after opening a docunent, you may
click again, tap on the page and then click on the three
lines that appear at the top, and it will take you to
this view where you can skip to any page you would |iKke.
In this viewin the upper right-hand corner it says
resune. That will take you back to the | ast page you
wer e on.

Are there any additional questions on use of the

i Pad?

CHWN. CHENAL: Show us the | ast feature.

MR. DUNCAN:. Yes, sure can. So after tapping on
the page, you -- up at the top upper |eft-hand corner

there are three |ines. Click on those three |ines and

it opens up a view -- and this works on any of the
docunents -- where you have a view of all the pages, and
clicking on any page will take you there. But if you

sinply want to resune the page that you were at before,
in the upper right-hand corner it says resune. ddick on
resune and it takes you back to the page you were at.

CHWN. CHENAL: Thank you.

MR. DUNCAN:. Any ot her questions?

(No response.)

MR. DERSTINE: Ckay. Thank you, Kevin.

The |l ast bullet there on ny case presentation
slide is the placemat. On the one side we have got the
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three routes then as they are in the application, the
preferred, Alternative Route 1, Alternative Route 2.

On the back you have two visual sinulations.
And what we have done is cherry picked what we think are
the greatest visual inpacts of the project. So what you
have before you in those, there will -- | think
M. Petry will present five sinulations at four key
observation points. Wat you have on the back of the
pl acemat, | think, are what M. Petry will testify to
are the greatest visual inpacts of the project. And we
wll get into greater depth of those in the heart of the
case, but that's what is on the reverse side of the
pl acenmat .

My wife told ne that this was what -- we were
sitting watching Field of Dreans, this Kevin Costner
nmovie. And | said, hey, that's ny siting case, kind of.
And she told nme not to use it, but |I amgoing to anyway.

There is a scene in the Field of Dreans where
Kevin Costner is wal king through a corn field, not a
cotton field, but corn field. And he hears this voice
that says if you build it, he will cone, or if you build
it, they will cone.

And that nade nme think about this case in this
sense, and it requires a twst of the phrase. And it
becones if they cone, you have to build it. Data
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centers are coming to the west valley, these two
projects, and there is several behind it.

APS serves the west valley of Phoenix. It has
an obligation to provide safe and reliable power. It
has to get to a 230kV transmission line in order to
serve the heavy | oad of these two data center projects.
And the question is how do you do that in a way that
m ni m zes the environnental inpacts, mnin zes the
i mpacts to | andowners, residences, and businesses. And
that's what our case is about. And we are | ooking
forward to presenting you our case and telling you how
we plan to do that.

Thank you.

CHWN. CHENAL: Thank you.

Menmber Wbodal | .

MEMBER WOODALL: M. Derstine, so everything
that's on our tablet has been nmarked as an exhibit, is
that correct?

MR. DERSTINE: Everything that is on your tabl et
has been marked as an exhibit except for the reshuffled,
reordered case presentati on deck. And we have a copy
for the court reporter to mark separately, and we wl|
file that in the docket as well.

MEMBER WOODALL: And we don't have hard copies
of that; we just have it on the tablet?
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MR. DERSTINE: | believe we have hard copies
available. And if you would prefer to have a hard copy
of the actual case, presentation case, we can get you
t hat .

MEMBER WOCDALL: Thank you so much, sir.

CHWN. CHENAL: M. Enmedi.

MR. EMEDI: Chairman Chenal, nenbers of the
Comm ttee, thank you for your tine today.

Staff has had the opportunity to review the
conpany's application, as well as their suppl enent al
packet. And we had al so actually requested sone
techni cal studies that we al so reviewed. And based on
that, we did not identify any issues or concerns wth
the application. And also based on that review, Staff
did not believe that we needed to present a witness at
t hi s heari ng.

However, we will, as reflected in the letter
t hat we docketed on Septenber 20th, we did want to be
here to take in the evidence that was presented,
potentially do sone cross-exam nation. And should we
| earn sonet hi ng significant that would pronpt us to
revisit our position, we would nake the appropriate

filing to notify the Commttee of that change in

position, but as of right now, nothing has changed since

we docketed that letter |ast Friday.
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Thank you.

CHWN. CHENAL: And M. Enedi, | don't believe
that letter has been marked as an exhibit by the
applicant. 1Is it your intention -- or maybe | can ask
you to introduce that as an intervenor's exhibit to the

pr oceedi ng.

MR EMEDI: | can definitely do that. And |I do
have copies. | think |I have enough for everyone here,
but | can definitely introduce that as an exhibit.

CHWN. CHENAL: Good. Thank you very much.

Al right. Any questions fromthe Commttee?

Menber Wbodal | .

MEMBER WOCODALL: Just to restate, | wll need a
hard copy version of the revised slide deck

Thank you.

MR. DERSTINE: Are there other nenbers of the
Comm ttee that would |i ke a hard copy version?

(No response.)

CHWN. CHENAL: Gkay, thank you.

MR. DERSTINE: W w |l get you one.

CHWN. CHENAL: Al right. At this time |
normally like to ask if there is anyone in the audi ence
that wi shes to make any public coment before we start
wWwth the first swearing in of the wtness panel and
begin with the first witness. Don't everyone rush at
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once to the m crophone.

Ckay. W don't see anybody. So with that, |et
me turn it back to the applicant. And counsel, and if
you would |i ke to begin your presentation of your case,
| will be happy to swear in the w tnesses.

All right. Does each nenber of the panel -- and
| et nme know your preference, an oath or an affirmation.
M. Larsen.

MR. LARSEN. Cat h.

CHWN. CHENAL: M. Spitzkoff.

MR, SPI TZKOFF:  An oat h.

CHWN. CHENAL: M. Petry.

MR. PETRY: Affirmation, please.

CHWN. CHENAL: Ckay. For the oath, if would you
rai se your right hand, please.

(Jason Spitzkoff and Brad Larsen were duly
sworn. )

CHWN. CHENAL: And M. Petry, would you raise
your right hand, please.

(Devin Petry was duly affirned.)

CHWN. CHENAL: Al right. Thank you very nuch.

M. Derstine or Ms. Benally.

MS. BENALLY: Thank you, Chairnman Chenal .

Gentl emen, are you ready to start?

MR. LARSEN:  Yes.
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MS. BENALLY: How | plan on proceeding this
afternoon is doing an introduction of each one of our
W t nesses so that you have sone background around what
t heir experience, education, professional and ot herw se

is, and their prior experience with the Line Siting

Commi ttee.

I would also like to begin wwth M. Brad Larsen,
then I wll nove to M. Jason Spitzkoff -- pardon ne, to
M. Devin Petry, and then | will close wth Jason
Spi t zkof f .

JASON SPI TZKOFF, BRAD LARSEN, and DEVI N PETRY
call ed as wtnesses on behalf of the Applicant, having
been previously duly sworn or affirnmed by Chairnan
Chenal to speak the truth and nothing but the truth,

were exam ned and testified as foll ows:

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON

BY M5. BENALLY:

Q So M. Larsen, would you pl ease state your nane
for the record.

A (BY MR LARSEN) D. Brad Larsen, L-A-R S-E-N.

Q And M. Larsen, you are a project manager of
transm ssion and facility siting for APS, is that
correct?
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A (BY MR LARSEN) That is correct.

Q And you are the project manager for the W] dcat
and Cycl one 230kV transm ssion |ine project?

A (BY MR LARSEN) Yes, | am

Q Wul d you pl ease share with the Committee an
overvi ew of your education and your work experience.

A (BY MR LARSEN) Yes. | have a bachel or of
science in electrical engineering fromArizona State
Uni versity. | am a professional engineer, electrical
engi neer, in the State of Arizona and have been for nmany
years. | amalso a senior nenber of the Institute of
El ectronic and El ectrical Engineers, which is an
i nternational organi zati on of engi neers.

| have approximately 30 years with APS in
various roles. | have served as a transm ssion and
subtransm ssi on planning engineer. | have -- sorry. |
have al so perfornmed duties as an engi neer in substation
engi neering, as well as the | eader of engi neering and
constructi on of substations at APS. | have al so served
as a supervisor in the underground construction
engi neering and project nmanagenent for distribution and
transm ssi on systens. And nost inportantly, | do have

about 15 years experience as a siting consultant.

Q Thank you, M. Larsen.
Let's now nove to the topics that you wll be
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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covering in your testinony as we proceed into this
afternoon and in the next couple days of hearing. Wuld
you pl ease cover what those topics are.

A (BY MR LARSEN) Yes. Over the next coupl e days
| will cover a nunber of topics that you will see on the
right screen there. W wll touch on the application
and the public notice of hearings. | wll give a brief
proj ect description, talk about how the project was
devel oped, and how we devel oped the |links and then into
line alternatives.

And | al so tal k about the corridors and
ri ghts-of-way, project costs, type of structures used
for these facilities. And | wll also discuss the
public and agency outreach that we perforned.

Q Thank you, M. Larsen.

| would like to cover several of the exhibits
that were filed by APS that you are going to be

sponsori ng.

A (BY MR, LARSEN) Ckay.

Q Do you have the exhibit binder in front of you?
A (BY MR LARSEN) Yes, | do.

Q And this would be the suppl enental packet?

A (BY MR LARSEN) VYes.

Q The Chairman's procedural order required that

the parties file a sunmary of your testinony. D d you
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prepare a sunmary?

A (BY MR LARSEN) Yes, | did.

Q And your testinony summary i s marked as APS
Exhibit 2, is that correct?

A (BY MR LARSEN) That is correct.

Q Do you have any changes or corrections that you
would li ke to nmake to that testinony summary today?

A (BY MR LARSEN) No, | do not.

Q You al so prepared PowerPoint slides that will be
used as a part of your testinony which are bei ng shown
on the screen today that you will use as a part of the
testi nony over the next several days. And is your

presentati on, the PowerPoint presentation, marked as APS

Exhi bit 3?2
A (BY MR LARSEN) Yes, it is.
Q WAs APS-3 prepared by you or under your

di rection?

A (BY MR LARSEN) Yes, it was.

Q Your Power Point presentation wll include
vari ous maps, photos, and information. Wuld you share
with the Commttee the source of the maps, photos and
information that are included in your presentation.

A (BY MR LARSEN) Yes. Many of the maps, the
di agrams, graphics that you will see in ny testinony
were prepared by EPG our environnental consultant,
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under ny direction.

Q And t hose maps, the photos, and information that
are included in your presentation, are those al so
i ncluded for the nost part in APS s application, which
is marked as APS-1?

A (BY MR LARSEN) Yes, they are.

Q And did you revi ew your Power Poi nt presentati on,

APS- 3, before the hearing today?

A (BY MR LARSEN) Yes, | did.

Q And do you have any corrections you wi sh to make
to APS-3?

A (BY MR LARSEN) No, | do not have any

corrections.
Q And is the information presented in APS-3 true
and correct, to the best of your know edge?
A (BY MR LARSEN) VYes, it is.
MS. BENALLY: Ckay. Thank you.
Chair Chenal, if you deemit appropriate, |
woul d I'i ke to nove for the adm ssion of APS Exhibits 2
and 3 at this tine.
CHWN. CHENAL: Any objection to APS-2 and APS-3?
(No response.)
CHWN. CHENAL: APS-2 and APS-3 are admtted.
(Exhibits APS-2 and APS-3 were admtted into
evi dence.)

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 183 VOL | 09/24/2019

MS. BENALLY: Thank you.
BY M5. BENALLY:

Q | would like to now nove to M. Devin Petry.

M. Petry, would you pl ease state your nane and busi ness
addr ess.

A (BY MR PETRY) Yes. M nane is Devin Petry,
and ny business address is 4141 North 32nd Street,
Phoeni x, Ari zona.

Q Woul d you descri be your education and your
pr of essi onal background for the Commttee, please.

A (BY MR PETRY) Yes. | received a bachel or of
arts in geography fromthe University of Arizona. | am
a project manager and environnental planner at EPG or
Envi ronnental Planning G oup. And | have 11 years of
experience in environnental planning, facility siting
studies, and perm tting, and have nmanaged or
participated in nmore than 40 environnmental planning
projects and i npact assessnent studies.

Q Have you testified previously before the Arizona
Power Pl ant and Transm ssion Line Siting Conmttee?

A (BY MR PETRY) Yes, | have. | have previously
testified before the Siting Commttee in Case No. 162,

t he Sonoran sol ar energy generation tie line project, as
well as Case No. 174, the Pinal Central energy center
generation tie line project.
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Q Let's nove now to a description of your
enpl oyer, which is EPG Wuld you pl ease descri be EPG
for the Coormttee.

A (BY MR PETRY) Yes. EPGis an
i nterdi sciplinary environmental planning and permtting
firm W have offices in four states across the western
United States. W are headquartered here in Phoeni x,
Arizona. EPG personnel have provided testinony in nore
than 30 cases for the Siting Commttee.

Q And how di d EPG assist with the preparation of
the application that APS filed for this particul ar
proj ect?

A (BY MR PETRY) W at EPG were retained by APS
to assist in the preparation for the project in
perform ng the environnental resource studies, as well
as assisting with the public invol venmrent program

Q I would like to now nove to the exhibits that
you prepared for this hearing. You prepared a sunmary
of your testinony that was filed on Septenber 12, 2019,
which is nmarked as APS-6, is that correct?

A (BY MR PETRY) Yes.

Q And do you have any corrections you would I|ike

to nake to APS-6?

A (BY MR PETRY) No.
Q You al so prepared a Power Poi nt presentation,
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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which is marked as APS-7. And that's also what is being

shown on the screens today, is that correct?

A (BY MR PETRY) Yes.

Q And was that exhibit prepared by you?

A (BY MR PETRY) Yes.

Q Your Power Poi nt slides include maps, photos, and
information. Just as | asked M. Larsen, | wll ask you

the sane question: Wat is the source of that
i nf ormati on?

A (BY MR PETRY) That information cane from many
sources, including online aerial imagery. Sone
i nformati on cane from pl anni ng docunents identified
t hrough the | ocal and regional jurisdictions, as well as
i nformati on devel oped by nyself or staff under ny
supervi si on.

Q And much of that information you just covered,
maps, photos and information, are included in APS s
application for the CEC, is that correct?

A (BY MR PETRY) Yes.

Q Have you revi ewed your Power Point presentation
since it was fil ed?

A (BY MR PETRY) Yes, | have.

Q Ckay. And do you have any changes or
corrections you would li ke to nake to that presentation
t oday?
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A (BY MR. PETRY) No.

Q And is the information that is included in the
Power Poi nt presentation true and accurate, to the best
of your know edge?

A (BY MR PETRY) Yes.

Q I would |ike for you now to briefly cover the
pur pose of your testinony today.

A (BY MR PETRY) Certainly. The purpose of ny
testinony is to provide the Siting Commttee with
information on the environnental studies that we
conpl eted, which include the existing and pl anned | and
uses, which are identified under application Exhibits A
and B; the biological resources, which are included
under application Exhibits C and D; scenic areas,
historic sites, and structures and archeol ogi cal sites,
whi ch are included under application Exhibit E;
recreational purposes and aspects, included under
application Exhibit F, and existing plans, identified
under application Exhibit H.

I will also present to the Commttee sone
phot ogr aphi ¢ sinul ati ons that we have conpleted as part
of the project, as well as the results of these
environnent al studies, and, as was indicated previously,
provide the Commttee with a virtual tour or Google
Earth overview of the project alternatives.
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MS. BENALLY: Thank you, M. Petry.

Chai rman Chenal, with the conpl etion of
M. Petry's introduction, | would like to nove for the
adm ssion of APS-6 and APS-7.

CHWN. CHENAL: All right. Applicant noved APS-6
and 7. Any objection?

(No response.)

CHWN. CHENAL: No objections, APS-6 and 7 are
adm tted.

(Exhibits APS-6 and APS-7 were admtted into
evi dence.)

MS. BENALLY: Thank you.

I will now nove to the introduction of our fina
W tness on the panel, M. Spitzkoff.

BY MS. BENALLY:

Q Wul d you pl ease state your full name for the
record.
A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) Jason Spitzkoff. That's

S-P-1-T-Z-K-O F- F.

Q As co-counsel nentioned earlier today, you have
a nunmber of different titles or departnents that you are
responsible for. So | note that you are the manager for
transm ssi on pl anni ng and engi neering, interconnections
devel opnment, and facilities siting. |Is that correct?
Did | capture themall?
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A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) Yes, that's correct.

Q And in these roles you play a -- pardon ne,
pl ayed a significant involvenent with this project, is
that correct?

A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) Yes.

Q Woul d you please famliarize the Conmttee with
an overvi ew of your education and your work experience.
A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) | received a bachel or of
science in electrical engineering and a bachel or of

econom cs from Rutgers University.

| have been with APS for over 18 years, the
first 14 years of that as a transm ssi on pl anni ng
engi neer, then three and a half years as the supervisor
of transm ssion planni ng and engi neeri ng.

And ny current role is manager of transm ssion
pl anni ng, interconnection devel opnent, and facilities
siting for APS. In that tine, | have had a nunber of
roles locally and throughout the western

i nt er connecti on.

I have been a nenber of various WECC comm tt ees.

WECC is the Western Electricity Coordi nati ng Council .
That's the regional reliability organization for the
western i nterconnection. | ama nenber of the planning
managenent conmmttee of West Connect. WestConnect is the
regi onal planning group that APS is a part of. | ama

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ

42



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 183 VOL | 09/24/2019

menber of the NERC planning commttee. NERC is the
North Anmerican Electric Reliability Corporation. They
are the reliability entity for all of North Ameri ca.

| have been the APS subject matter expert for a
nunber of BTAs. That's the Biennial Transm ssion
Assessnent. That is a function the ACC perfornms. And I
have previously testified in Line Siting Case No. 136.

Q And just to clarify, when you refer to the ACC
you are tal king about the Arizona Corporation
Conmmi ssi on?

A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) Yes.

Q Thank you.

M. Spitzkoff, you prepared a sumuary of your
testinony that was filed in APS s supplenental filing on
Septenber 12, 2019, and it is narked as APS Exhi bit 4,
is that correct?

A (BY MR SPITZKOFF) That is correct.

Q And do you have any corrections you would |ike

to make to Exhibit 4 today?

A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF)  No.
Q You al so prepared a Power Point slide that you
wll be working fromto performor conplete your

testi nony before the Commttee. That's also marked as
APS Exhibit 5, is that correct?
A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) That is correct.
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Q And t he Power Poi nt presentation marked as APS-5
is what we have projected on the screens today?

A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) Yes.

Q And was APS-5 prepared by you or under your
di rection?

A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF)  Yes.

Q And t he Power Point slides that you are going to
be working fromto support your testinony include maps,
photos, and other information. Wuld you pl ease
descri be the source of that information in your
t esti nony.

A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) Mbst of the naps were
devel oped by Environnmental Planning G oup as part of
this case and are included in the application.

There is a couple of maps that are produced by
i n- house APS personnel, sone system naps. There is al so
sone pictures that were -- that are included that are
from APS personnel. And there is a video in ny
presentation that was taken fromthe website of Stream
Data Centers and that we downl oaded and is incl uded.

Q Ckay, great. Thank you.

Now, with the exception of the video
presentation fromthe internet, nost of the infornation
that is included in this slide deck is included in APS s
application for a CEC, is that correct?
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A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF)  Yes.
Q Do you have any corrections you would like to
make to APS-5?
A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) No.
Q And is the information that's presented in APS-5
true and accurate to the best of your know edge?
A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF)  Yes.
MS. BENALLY: Ckay, thank you.
Chair Chenal, | would |like to nove for adm ssion
of APS-4 and APS-5 at this tine.
CHWN. CHENAL: Ckay. The applicant asked for
the adm ssion of APS-4 and 5. Any objections?
(No response.)
CHWN. CHENAL: Hearing none, APS-4 and 5 are
adm tted.
(Exhibits APS-4 and APS-5 were admtted into
evi dence.)
MS. BENALLY: Thank you. That concl udes the
i ntroducti on of our wtnesses on the panel today, and I
wll turn it now to co-counsel, M. Derstine.
MR. DERSTI NE: Thank you.
M. Chairman, menbers of the Commttee, our next
chapter in our presentation will be through
M. Spitzkoff. And we are going to cover, give you sone
background and under st andi ng of the APS service
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territory and its transm ssi on system

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q So with that, M. Spitzkoff, |let ne have you
start with talking and giving us a high I evel overview
of APS's service territory and its system

A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) Yeah. So APS has been
serving Arizona for over 125 years. W provide service
in 11 of Arizona's 15 counties. Qur service territory
enconpasses over 35,000 square nmles. W have 34, 000
mles of transm ssion |ines.

And |l et ne provide sone orientation to the map
on the left screen. You can see the outline of the
State of Arizona. On the top center is the Navajo
Cenerating Station, this is by Page, Arizona; the Four
Corners Cenerating Station, which is just near
Far m ngt on, New Mexi co.

The areas highlighted in blue is the APS service
territory. And you can see it spans from northern
Arizona all the way down to southern Arizona wth

territory in Yuma County all the way down to Cochi se

County.
APS has 1.2 mlIlion retail and whol esal e
custoners. And if the -- we get the next --
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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CHWN. CHENAL: Excuse ne, M. Spitzkoff. Menber
Wbodal | has a questi on.

MEMBER WOODALL: M. Spitzkoff, with respect to
the system map that you had on the | eft-hand side, does
that have a listing of all high voltage and extra high
voltage lines that are APS owned or APS nay have a j oi nt
interest in wth soneone?

MR. SPI TZKOFF: Yes. Thank you for that. |
shoul d have pointed that out.

The lines in the black are APS owned and/ or
operated |lines, APS owns 100 percent or joint ownership
W th other conpanies. There are one or two that are
lines fromother utilities we thought are significant
enough to just include themon the map.

And really the only high voltage |lines that
woul d not be on here are the ones nore in the Phoeni x
nmetropolitan region. Those are a little too nunerous to
show on a map li ke this.

MEMBER WOODALL: And may | ask, sir, what is the
source of this map? D d APS prepare it?

MR, SPI TZKOFF: Yes. This is a map that APS has
been using for a nunber of years.

MEMBER WOCDALL: And if 1, for exanple, wanted a
copy of it or any nenber of the public, you would
provide it to thenf
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MR. SPI TZKOFF: | believe so.

MEMBER WOODALL: | was just trying to determ ne
if there is any sensitive information on here. |
realize -- or let nme ask you this: The lines that are
depi cted here do not refl ect the geographic |ocation of
the transm ssion lines, is that correct?

MR. SPI TZKOFF: That is correct. It is too
general in nature.

MEMBER WOCDALL: Ckay.

MR, SPI TZKOFF: And not show ng the voltage
| evel s also brings it up a | evel enough so that we
don't -- would not consider this map what sone peopl e
know as confidential electric infrastructure
i nf or mati on.

MEMBER WOODALL: Thank you, M. Spitzkoff.

CHWN. CHENAL: M. Spitzkoff, | had a question.
The generating pl ants, Coronado, Four Corners, Cholla,
and Navaj o, what is, if you know, the plan for
deconm ssioning any or all of those plants? Wat is the
timeline for that?

MR, SPITZKOFF: So | could speak to sone of
them Not all of themare APS plants or plants that APS
has a joint share in.

The Navaj o generating plant up at the top center
there, the plan for that is, that plant wll be
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deconm ssi oned by the end of this year. | believe the
first unit may have already cone off |line. But al
three are planned to cone off |line before the end of
this year.

Sonme of the units, 1, 2 and 3, at Four Corners,
which is shown up here, canme off |line a nunber of years
ago. And Units 4 and 5 are still operational. | am not
aware of if there is a specific date for the retirenent
of those. It would be definitely out in the future.

Cholla Unit 2 -- and Cholla is shown -- you can
see where | ampointing here, that's a coal plant. |
think it is outside St. Joseph, Arizona. Unit No. 2 was
retired a couple of years ago. | think PacifiCorp is
the owner of Unit 4, and they have a plan to retire
that. | can't recall if that's at the end of 2020 or
so, | think, sonething |ike that.

The other coal plant | think you nenti oned was
Coronado and Springerville, which is not shown on here.
Those APS has no, no ownership in, and I am not aware of
any -- what their plans for retirenment are.

CHWN. CHENAL: Thank you.

MR, SPI TZKOFF: Ckay. So now the map on the
left is a nore close in view of the Phoeni x netropolitan
ar ea.

Let ne just provide a little orientation. You
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can see through the center of the map up and down is
Interstate 17. You can see basically the center of the
map horizontally is Interstate 10. And the Loop 101 is
in red and Loop 303 here.

The yell ow star is intended to show t he general
area that we are in today, which is the Goodyear area.
The areas in white are the APS service territory. The
areas in gray are non-APS service territory. And so of
the 1.2 mllion retail custoners, the bul k of those
custoners are in the Phoenix netropolitan area. Also in
the APS, the full APS system peak, the highest peak for
our systemwas 7,367 negawatts. And that was in 2017.
Again, the large bulk of that would be in the Phoeni x
met ropol i tan ar ea.

BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q M. Spitzkoff, do you have a map that can focus
inalittle nore closely on the transm ssi on resources
that are in the Goodyear area?

A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) Yes, we do. So this map on
the left is again a little bit nore focused in on the
west vall ey and the southern part of the west valley.

So | amgoing to trace out, really this area is
t he general Goodyear area, with Avondale, and then Cty
of Phoenix starting off on that side and City of Buckeye
off to the west. You can see Loop 101 in the red on the
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right side of the screen, Interstate 10 again traversing

across the mddle of the screen, and then Loop 303 a
little bit just to the left center.

What this shows is the 69kV systemthat serves
the area. Like nost areas, the actual |oad service is
off of a 69kV network with 69 to 12kV substations. So
the lines that you see in black are 69kV lines, the
solid black. And then the triangles depict our 69 to
12kV substations. And those are where the | oad-serving
f eeders conme out of.

What you al so see on this map with the bl ack
squares, and there is one open white square here at
Rudd, these are the transm ssion sources that feed into
the network. So this area has two main sources, the
Pal m Val | ey 230 substation, and the Wite Tanks 230
substati on, and the Rudd 500/ 230 substation over here.

Q Wth that background on the Goodyear area
transm ssion system naybe this is the right time to
tal k about data centers.

M. Spitzkoff, you are an expert in
transm ssi on, transm ssion planning. You are not an
expert in data centers, but we have asked you to give
the Commttee a little bit of a background on data
centers and sone of the key features. So let's talk
about that now
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Wiy don't you start with a bit of an overvi ew of
sone of the key features of data centers and why they
are uni que custoners for APS.

A (BY MR SPITZKOFF) Sure. So the first bullet
on the right screen is kind of the dictionary definition
of a data center. Really what it is is, especially what
it is called hyperscale data centers, are |arge
bui I di ngs that are specially designed to house high
speed and highly efficient conputers, or servers, and
ot her supporting equi pnent. Wat these servers often
provi de, they provide service for search engi nes, cloud
conputing, and ot her web-based services.

The picture on the left is a picture you can
find on the internet. And | don't know exactly which
data center it is from It is just a generic picture,
but you can see all of the servers here set up in the
rows that you will find inside data centers.

Data centers consune a lot of electricity in
order to operate and cool the equipnment. They operate
24 hours a day, seven days a week, 365 days a year. And
as M. Derstine pointed out earlier, they generally have

a flat load profile with a 90 percent or greater | oad

factor.
CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Wodall has a question.
MEMBER WOODALL: M. Spitzkoff, | amnot sure if
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you are going to get into this later, but | was curious
to know whether or not there is any specific technical
specifications or equi pnent that is needed for

transm ssion lines that are providing this type of

service. And if | have interrupted your orderly
t houghts, | apol ogi ze.
MR. SPI TZKOFF: | can provide just a high | evel

response right now, for sure. So we would have two
t houghts on that. The main need froma transm ssion
perspective for data centers is reliability. The other
need is, given the density and the hi gh anount of | oad,
it is to have, to be at a | arge enough transm ssi on

| evel that can handl e that anount of power.

MEMBER WOODALL: | notice that on the proposed
routing it |looks like you have, | don't want to call it
acircle, but it looks like there is -- if one thing

went out, it |looks |ike others m ght be able to stand at
the ready. | amwondering if you could explain that to
us.

MR, SPI TZKOFF: Sure. That goes to the
reliability that | was speaking of and what we call, or
sonetines you will hear, N-1 capability. You can | ose
any one el enent of any one |ine, any one transforner,

w thout |oss of load. Al of the alternatives neet that
criteria and provide a networked service. So it is not
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a single source or aradial line. You would have a |line

coming in fromtwo different directions, so if you | ose

one direction, you can still serve fromthe other side.
MEMBER WOCDALL: | ask that question, number
one, | aminterested, and, nunber two, in honor of

former electric utility engineer for the Arizona

Cor porati on Comm ssioner, Jerry Smth, who woul d make
this point in hearings. And | will be sure to tell him
that | did. Thank you.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Haeni chen.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Thank you, M. Chairnman.

In the event of an outage, where the center
actually loses all power comng in, what happens to the
status of all proceedings that we are going through,
happeni ng at that data center?

MR SPITZKOFF: So | will answer that again with
the caveat | amnot a data center expert. But there is
a lot of noving parts there. These centers w ||
generally have backup generation. So there is a battery
systemthat will span the tine until a quick start,
typically diesel generation, can get up and runni ng at
full load to provide power for their sites. And
assunm ng at the sane tine the data center personnel
would be trying to, if they don't already have the
i nformati on backed up, shift the infornmation to ot her
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sites that they have either locally or across the
country.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Thank you.

BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q We are not going to have an opportunity to take
the Commttee on a tour of a data center as part of this
hearing, but |I think you have a video that kind of wal ks
us through a data center. | think it is a Stream data
center in another part of the country. Can you show us
t hat now?

A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) Yes. So this video that we
wll play in a second on the |left screen is a video from
Stream Data Centers' website. It is representative of
what you -- the various pieces that you will find in a
data center. What it does is kind of wal ks you through
the data center. And this facility is their data center
in the Houston area.

And if we could play, start the video.

(Video playing.)

MR, SPI TZKOFF: And the first thing you are
going to see is the security features of the data
center. G ven the nature of what they are, the
information that they have in their critical nature,
security is inportant for these facilities.

As we cone out the nman trap, you will see office
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space to house the support personnel. Then we will nove
i nto dedi cated tel ecommuni cati ons and networ ki ng roons,
and then nove into the | argest portions of the data
centers, which are the data halls. This is where all of
t hose networks, those rows and rows of servers are

| ocated, a power room and then finally outside the
facility where they have vari ous equi pnent needed to run
t he bui |l di ngs.

(Vi deo concl udes.)

MR, SPI TZKOFF: So very generally that's, you
know, the inner workings of a data center. This is just
a representative sanple of one type of data center. And
| just want to point out a couple of items for
reference --

CHWN. CHENAL: Before you begin, M. Spitzkoff,
just a question. You don't have to go back to the
vi deo, but you nentioned equi pnent that was on the
outside of the building that you said was necessary to
run the data center. What is the nature of that
equi pnment ?

MR SPI TZKOFF: So sone of it is going to be air
condi tioning or cooling equipnent, water equi pment.

Most likely their backup generation is going to be
| ocated out there, things of that nature.

CHWN. CHENAL: Thank you.
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Menmber Hamnay.

MEMBER HAMMY: | think | saw that you're
targeting a LEED gold status. Did | see that on there?

MR. SPITZKOFF: So that's the data center
devel opers. So in this case that woul d be Stream Data
Centers. APS is not building these data centers. But |
did see that on their video.

MEMBER HAMMY: Ckay, all right. So you don't
really know what constitutes a LEED silver versus gold
versus bronze?

VMR, SPI TZKOFF: Personally, | do not.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Wodall.

MEMBER WOODALL: Excuse nme. Wth respect to the
video, | don't want to hurt the utility's feelings, but
| didn't see any electrical infrastructure such as
transm ssion |ines or substations. Are they
under ground, or are they there but just not depicted in
the video, if you know?

MR, SPI TZKOFF: So | don't know specifically.
But you preenpted ny --

MEMBER WOODALL: | am sorry.

MR, SPI TZKOFF: -- point | was going -- about to
get there, to that point. What is depicted in here is a
facility that is 74,000, just about 75,000 square feet.
And within it they have three 10, 000 square feet of data
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hall space in there. And this facility is designed for
7.8 nmegawatts of critical | oad.

So whether there is a substation there or not,
at 7.8 negawatts, a facility of that size could be fed
fromdistribution |level, which could easily, may easily
be underground feeding into that facility.

For a point of reference, the Stream Data
Centers, the existing building on their site is 418, 000
square feet, and is capable of supporting 50 nmegawatts
of critical load just for that one building. And that's
about five tines the size of what you see, saw in that
vi deo there.

MEMBER WOODALL: Thank you very much. That was
very hel pful.

MR, SPI TZKOFF: M pl easure.

CHWN. CHENAL: M. Spitzkoff, | thought | heard
earlier in the presentation that the |load for the Stream
facility that's planned for this project, Cyclone --

MR. DERSTI NE: Ri ght .

CHWN. CHENAL: -- was on the order of
360 megawatts. So you just discussed a 50 negawatt
Streamfacility. So is that different than the one
that's projected for this project?

MR. SPI TZKOFF: No, Chairman. That is just for
the one existing building. Their full site wll
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enconpass nunerous buildings. So they have 157 acres on
that site, basically what you have seen in the bl ue
area. And their spec sheet says with full buil dout they
expect 2 mllion square feet of data center space.

CHWN. CHENAL: All right. Thank you.

BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q M. Spitzkoff, you have given us a little bit of
a ook at what a data center is and what it |ooks |ike
inside. | guess it raises the question of why they are
novi ng here. Can you address that a bit.

A (BY MR SPITZKOFF) Yes. Gve the presenters a
second to get the |eft screen back.

Ckay. So on the right side of the screen, the
first two bullet points are quotes that | have up here,
one froma Stream Data Centers representative, one from
a Mcrosoft representative, tal king about, you know, why
they are coming to the Phoenix region. And in general,
there is a couple of factors, sonme of which M. Derstine
nmenti oned earlier.

Arizona has created a pro business environnent
t hat has enbraced technol ogy and i nnovative conpani es,
whi ch al so has fostered a strong tal ent pool.

There is alnost zero risk of natural disasters;
al t hough, after yesterday they m ght | ook at that again.

There is strong fiber connectivity to the ngjor

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 183 VOL | 09/24/2019

mar ket s.

There is availability of | arge scal e devel opabl e
land. | will just real quick on the left screen sort of
illTustrate that. You know, what you see in the orange
and the blue are the two sites here, but you can al so
see in the surrounding areas it is agricultural |and
that's slated for future industrial/comercial use. And
the west valley has a | ot of avail abl e devel opabl e | and,
and that |and has access to highly reliable transm ssion
i nes.

And we have generally | ow cost of power.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Wodall.

MEMBER WOODALL: M. Spitzkoff, | realize this
is not directly relevant to the siting of these
facilities, but are the conpanies going to pay regul ar
tariffed rates, or are there special contracts that you
are contenplating? And if it is proprietary or
confidential, you need not answer.

MR, SPI TZKOFF: | believe they are going to be
under the extra high load factor rate that the
Conmmi ssion approved | would say within the | ast year or
year -- or about that tinme frame.

MEMBER WOCDALL: Ckay. Thank you very much.

CHWN. CHENAL: One nore question. You can
see -- you are getting the picture, right? W like to

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 183 VOL | 09/24/2019 61

i nterrupt and ask questi ons.

MR, SPI TZKOFF: | believe that's probably your
j ob.

CHWN. CHENAL: Okay. So in the slide on the
right, low latency to major markets, | nust confess |

don't conpl etely understand what that neans.

MR, SPI TZKOFF: Basically latency is a tine
delay in transm ssion of infornation over fiber
networks. So it would be very little delay in the data.

So it is basically a speed thing. And it is --
| know, | think it was M. Petry here was telling nme if
you have children who are ganers or if you yourself are
a ganer, latency is a very big thing for you.

CHWN. CHENAL: Thank you.
BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q Again, M. Spitzkoff, you are having to take on

a role here that's necessarily not your training or your
background in terns of telling us about data centers and
giving us sone of the inportant background i nformation.
| think as part of that we have asked you to |ook into
whet her or not data centers provide any sort of broader
econom ¢ benefits to the state and the communities in
whi ch they end up putting their projects. So you have
done sone reading, and | think you have conpil ed sone
quotes from fol ks about the kind of benefits they
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provi de.
A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) Yes. So on the right
screen, again, | have two quotes. The first quote is

fromthe mayor of Goodyear. The second quote is from
t he mayor of El M rage.

As M. Derstine nentioned earlier, we are
working wiwth about five different data center sites, and
one of themis in EIl Mrage, which is why you see a
quote fromthe mayor of EIl Mrage on the screen. And
t hese quotes sort of outline sone of the benefits that
they see for these projects.

I amnot going to read the quotes, but although
|l ong-termdata centers do not directly enploy |arge
nunbers of enpl oyees, certainly not as |arge as
manuf acturing facilities may, but they have been found
to have fairly significant indirect benefits through the
construction of the facilities. So you will have a
| arge nunmber of construction jobs, along with a fair
nunber of permanent hi gh paying tech jobs once they are
up and runni ng.

There is also an inpact on the supply chain
sales for the | ocal econony. There is certainly
property tax revenues. And overall, these projects end
up investing mllions of dollars into the |ocal econony.

And now on the right screen, here is a third
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quote, fromthe governor of Arizona. And really the
theme of these three quotes -- or actually these three
quotes were fromthe M crosoft announcenent or ki ckoff
event and specifically relate to that project. But the
t heme of creating a business environnent is what you see
wWth these projects here. So, you know, one of the
other effects is it becones an environnent that attracts
ot her tech conpanies to the area al so.

And with the Stream project -- Mcrosoft was the
first one to purchase, acquire their land. Once they
did that, you know, we have noticed the other data
centers that have also started |looking in the area. So
it sort of creates an environnent where it attracts,
busi ness attracts ot her business.

Q Thank you for that.

Wth the background on data centers, let's nove
to a separate topic, and actually the --

CHWN. CHENAL: Let ne interrupt you,

M. Derstine. W have gone about 90 mnutes. W I|ike
to take breaks for the benefit of everybody, and
especially the court reporter. So this seens |like a

| ogi cal breakpoint for a 15-mnute break. So let's take
that break and we will resune in 15 m nutes. Thank you.

MR. DERSTI NE: Thank you.

(A recess ensued from2:29 p.m to 2:57 p.m)
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CHWN. CHENAL: All right. This is the tine for
a resunption of the hearing. And | think we |last |eft
M. Spitzkoff, and, | think, M. Derstine, you were
going to get into a new area. So unless there is
anything we need to discuss before we start, why don't
you pl ease proceed.

MR. DERSTINE: All right. Thank you,

M. Chairman. | think there are a couple things that we
want to touch on before we nove on with this next
chapter in our case presentation. At the break

M. Spitzkoff indicated to me that there were, | think,
two corrections he wanted, or clarifications for the
record fromthe prior testinony.

MR. SPI TZKOFF: Sure. First one | indicated the
Chol | a power plant was sonewhere around St. Joseph, and
it is actually Joseph City. It was close.

And just to clarify, M. Chairman, | believe it
was you who asked nme about the coal power plants. And,
you know, when |I was tal king about the Navaj o Generating
Station | just want to clarify APS is a joint owner, but
we are not the operator of the Navaj o power plant.

CHWN. CHENAL: Thank you. It wasn't neant to be
a trick question. But at sone point | am going to ask,
maybe it is relevant to need, nmaybe it isn't, but where
the power is going to cone fromto basically replace the
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power that's going to be |ost fromthese generating
stati on deconm ssi ons.

MR. DERSTINE: All right.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Nol and.

MEMBER NCLAND: M. Chairman, | had a question
wWwth regard to these projects. Do you knowif they are
going to be including any solar for ancillary
operations, |like offices or whatever, on either one of
t hese projects?

MR SPITZKOFF: So | don't know if they are

going to include any solar on-site. | am aware of
M crosoft's, part of -- their announcenent was part of
t hat was an agreenent they have, | believe, wth First

Sol ar energy to develop a power plant out by the Palo
Verde hub area.

MEMBER NOLAND: And then the other thing that
cane to m nd, do you know t he percentage of their power
usage that goes to air conditioning as conpared to the
operation of the servers?

MR. SPI TZKOFF: So | do not know that. Wat |

did find in nmy research on data centers these |l ast few

weeks, al nbst every site is different. And | don't know

how t hey are going to develop this site, so | don't know

t hat answer.
MEMBER NOLAND: Ckay. Thank you.
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CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Haeni chen.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Thank you, M. Chairman.

I have been doing this for quite a nunber of
years now, and | am al ways anmazed at how a utility can
come up with sone huge new load like this -- | would
consider this a najor |oad, these two conbined -- and
just throw it on an existing line and there is all the

capacity there to take it.

Last week we did a case, and | always ask this

question and | asked it. And they had a really

bel i evabl e answer because they are tal king about it was

going to be because of decomm ssi oni ng of coal plants,
and that woul d open up space on the line. 1|Is the sane
thing true here? How cone you have no probl em dunpi ng
all that energy in there?

MR SPI TZKOFF: So that's actually a pretty
conpl i cated question, and an even nore conpli cated
response.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Good.

MR SPITZKOFF: | will try ny best.

So the line that we are connecting into, the
Palo Verde -- sorry, the PalmValley to Rudd 230 |i ne,
the thermal rating of that line is, I think it is
1200 negawatts, or in that range. And it is really
given the nature of the networked system and how a
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net wor k syst em oper at es.

So one factor is the Rudd substation is one of
the major sources. And that's the inport point for a
| ot of power into the valley. So fromthe Rudd
substation over to these two | oads, you know, you are
traversing that 1200 negawatt capabl e |i ne.

Then it goes to the other site, the Pal mVall ey
substation. That also has a nunber of other 230kV I|ines
into it which are al so connected to ot her sources. So
what happens when you add | oad like this, you sort of
redistribute the flows to the surroundi ng networKk.

| hope that hel ps.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Well, it hel ps. But
utilities are required to have a certain anmnount of
overcapacity in the systemfor contingencies and that
kind of thing. But it just seens like there is nore
than i s needed as these | oads continue to be dunped onto
the existing infrastructure.

MR. SPI TZKOFF: | would characterize it alittle
different. And | think it is nore the benefit of
operating in a network system So if we put these |ines
into this, or these new loads into this |line, and the

studies, the reliability studies that we perform show

that we can do that, and what will happen for
contingencies, the other lines wll pick up enough of
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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the other | oad on a proportionate basis.

So, you know, you are correct there. You know,
you do need a little bit nore capacity, you know, to
handl e conti ngencies. And, you know, that's, you know,
what we are seeing here, is the network as a whol e can
absorb that |oad. And as we nove out into the future
and ot her | oads are added and, you know, the system
grows over time, you know, there are going to be
facilities that are going to have to be added just |ike
t here have been in, you know, some of the other projects
in our 10-year plan al so.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Thank you.

CHWN. CHENAL: Let ne follow up with a question
then. These two data centers are going to add about
600 negawatts of |oad. And based on your answer, that
can be, you know, diffused in the area to kind of
accommpdat e t hat 600 negawatts.

But back to Menber Haenichen's question, at what
poi nt would the network not be able to handle a | oad?
What woul d be that |oad that the network, you would say
600, okay, we can handle, but at what point does a
networ k not have the capacity to handl e?

MR, SPI TZKOFF: So for specifically this part of
t he network, you know, we didn't |ook at finding what
that nunmber is. W know we can accommpbdate the
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620 negawatts. Wether it is up to 700 or 800, we
didn't keep on going up because we didn't have that
request. And that answer would be different in
different parts of the network. So |I don't have a
specific nunber for you. But it is nore than

620 negawatts.

CHWN. CHENAL: Can you give like a wld guess as
to what that nunber woul d be?

MR, SPI TZKOFF: For this area, | would say maybe
pushi ng 800 to a thousand negawatts.

CHWN. CHENAL: Ckay. Al right. So this 600 is
getting, you know, it is taking quite a fair percentage
of the avail abl e capacity then.

MR, SPI TZKOFF: Well, and that's assum ng the
rest of the systemis also staying static, you know

CHWN. CHENAL: Al right. Thank you very nuch.
BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q M. Spitzkoff, | think also before we took our
break Menmber Hamway had a questi on about LEED
certification. Wre you able to address that?

A (BY MR SPITZKOFF) Yes. So for the M crosoft
site | can address that. They are | ooking to achieve
LEED gold status. | still don't know exactly what that
means, but that's what they are going for.

MR. DERSTINE: | understand that we wll, |
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think we will have a representative of Mcrosoft for

public comment, and maybe that gentleman can give us a

little more informati on on Mcrosoft's LEED

certification and what that neans, Menber Hamiay.
MEMBER HAMMY: Ckay. Thank you.

BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q M. Spitzkoff, you can see on the screen that
the next chapter in our case presentation addresses
pur pose, need, and project design. Let's start by just
havi ng you descri be the purpose of the project.

A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) Yes. The purpose of the
project is to serve these two new custoners.

Q And gi ven that basic purpose, from ny opening
you heard ne indicate that, although the purpose is
fairly straightforward, the need is a little nore
conplicated, given the nature of the data centers and
what you tal ked about in terns of the |oad of these two
data centers. Wiy don't you tal k through the need
i ssues and how that i npacts our project.

A (BY MR SPITZKOFF) Yes. So the need is to
extend our 230kV systemto the site of these two
custoners. Due to their high energy denmands, the need
is to serve it off of 230kV voltage and take them out of
our 69kV network, not serve it on a 69 system You
know, we have already tal ked about the Wl dcat site is
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expecting at full buildout 270 negawatts of |oad, the
Cyclone site up to 350 negawatts at full buil dout.

So for a little context, and to give you an idea
of , you know, how rmuch of a high load increase this is
wth data centers, the general Goodyear area -- and
which was represented a little bit earlier in our 69kV
systemnmap -- is expected to peak this sumer at
467 nmegawatts. So that's 467 negawatts for that whole
Goodyear area conpared to 620 negawatts with these two
cust oners.

And that 467 is spread out over a |larger area,
and this 620 negawatts is, you know, a nuch denser | oad,
just in these two specific spots. So that highlights
the need to serve it from our 230kV network and not out
of our 69kV network, which is for nornal general | oad
serving capability for regular residential and business
servi ce.

Q So we have pulled up the map that you referenced
earlier in kind of the west vall ey, Goodyear area
transm ssion system In terns of you indicated you can
serve -- you can't serve fromthe 69kV system but | see
there in the bullet point you have initial service can
be handl ed fromthe 69kV system can you tal k about that
alittle bit nore.

A (BY MR SPITZKOFF) Yes. Let nme orient you back
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on the left side of the screen. This is the Phoenix
Goodyear Airport. So right in this area is where the
two projects are. So we have a 69kV line that's
existing. That's just on the south side of Broadway
Road. That 69kV line will provide the initial |oad
service for the site.

You know, all 270, 350 negawatts doesn't show up
on day one. So they build into that. So from our 69kV
line we can serve 50 negawatts at each site. But once
they grow to over that 50 negawatt threshold, that's
when we have to nmake sure and transition them over to
our 230kV system take them out of the 69kV network, and
have their source at the 230kV.

Q So it is kind of that timng issue of at the
point in tinme that Mcrosoft and Stream are devel opi ng
their | oad exceeds the 50 negawatts, we then need to
have this project in place in order to serve that
increased load, is that right?

A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) That's correct.

CHWN. CHENAL: And what is the timng for that?

MR, SPI TZKOFF: So right now the expected timng
for the Mcrosoft site is near the end of 2021. And for
Stream the projections, they have put it sonewhere in
2022.

CHWN. CHENAL: Thank you.
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BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q And using the map on the left again, point us to
where that 230 PalmValley-Rudd line is in relation to
the two data center canpuses or projects.

A (BY MR SPITZKOFF) Yes. So again, here is the
Phoeni x Goodyear Airport. So the two sites are just
south, sort of in this area here. And then this is the
PalmValley to Rudd 230kV line. So it is in this area.
It is the northernnbst transmission line in this
corridor. It is about a half a mle or alittle bit
| ess south of Broadway Road.

Q Ckay. And so the purpose and need is to get
fromthe Pal mVall ey-Rudd 230kV Iine to these data
center canpuses and interconnect the two substations,
TS-15 and TS-18, into that line. That's generally the
pur pose and need of this project, right?

A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) Yes.

Q Ckay. So let's talk and have you give your Vview
on the project design and the routes that we have
brought forward in order to serve and satisfy the need.

CHWN. CHENAL: Let ne ask a question first.

MR. DERSTI NE: Yeah.

CHWN. CHENAL: Just kind of occurred to ne, you
know, in the mddle of sunmmer when you turn on the air
condi ti oner and your peak power, you are kind of adding
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to that peak load there. | nean this project is going
to create that peak 24/7 for 365 days a year.

So | guess it is just out of curiosity, but, |
nmean, are these two facilities going to be paying |ike
peak rates versus an average, you know, conmnerci al
custoner, or is it a special, special case, a special
pricing?

MR, SPI TZKOFF: So | believe they are going to
go on the extra high load factor rate, and | do not
believe there is like a tinme-of-use kind of factor that
| believe is what you are alluding to.

CHWN. CHENAL: Yeah. They don't get to just use

it from9:00 at night and 4:00 in the norning. They are

24/ 7.

MR. SPI TZKOFF: That's correct.

CHWN. CHENAL: But their load, if it exceeds the
City of Goodyear today, | nean that would seemto be

peak rate pricing, if it were a retail custoner.

MR, SPI TZKOFF: | amnot sure | necessarily
under st and your questi on.

CHWN. CHENAL: Well, maybe | am not
understanding it nyself. But yeah, Menber Haeni chen
will explainit, well, explain what | amtrying to ask.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: I n actual fact these are
dream type custoners for the utility, because they are
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not a peak user, they are an all tine steady user, and
t hey can depend on that | oad being there. So in the
m ddl e of the night, if they were having to pay a peak
load in the daytime, they should get a big kickback at
night. So that kind of averages out.

CHWN. CHENAL: GCkay. Thank you.

MR. DERSTINE: It is a good question. And
Menber Haenichen is correct. And | think one of the --
it is one of the unique characteristics about these data
center custoners, is that flat |oad profile that
M. Spitzkoff referred to.

So, you know, | think as nenbers of this
Comm ttee know, that during the day we have oftentines
overgeneration. W have so many renewabl e generation
assets on the system whether it is distributed
generation or utility scale, that you have what we refer
to as the duck curve. W have this excess
overgeneration during the day. But at the peak,
utilities li ke Arizona Public Service Conpany have to
figure out and marshal those generation assets in order
to fill those resources when everyone comes home and
turns on the oven and starts the dryer toward the end
the day, which | think is generally where APS
experiences its peak | oad.

So to Menber Haeni chen's point, you have got
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t hese custoners that, you know, have a flat | oad
profile, and they are soaking up sone of that
overgeneration during the tines of the day when there is
excess power on the systemlargely fromrenewabl es.

But to your point, M. Chairman, this |load w |
i ncrease the peak and APS will have to serve it.

CHWN. CHENAL: | nean doubl e the peak

MR. DERSTINE: That's right. WIlIl, certainly
doubl e --

CHWN. CHENAL: I n the Goodyear area.

MR. DERSTINE: -- the peak in the Goodyear area.

CHWN. CHENAL: Yes.

Menmber Hamnay.

MEMBER HAMMY: So how many years -- | know you
said 2021, '21 and '22 to get the power. So when are
they going to be at full buildout, or when is their
estimated point at full buildout? And probably that is
determ ned by how nuch power and server things they can
sell to other custoners, right?

MR SPITZKOFF: So | think for the Streamsite
t heir business nodel is what we call a collocation
facility, or it is alittle bit different. They bui |l d,
develop a building, sell it to an enterprise user or
sone ot her custoners, then devel op the next buil ding,
et cetera.
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I would believe the Mcrosoft project would be a
little bit different. It is, nmy guess or ny assunption
is it is an enterprise use for their own needs, you
know, internal to the overall M crosoft needs.

MEMBER HAMMY: Ckay. So that really didn't
still answer full buildout. | nean, are we tal king 10
years? And | know you probably can't answer. That's a
busi ness nodel for those two conpani es.

MR, SPI TZKOFF: Yes, so you are correct, that is
a busi ness nodel for those conpanies.

I think there was al so another part to your
question where you stated it depends on the power that
we can provide. | would posit that once the 230
facilities are constructed, we would be able to provide
their full buildout at a faster pace than they would be
be able to nove equi pnent and build their buil dings.

MEMBER HAMMY: Ckay, thank you.

BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q | think we are going to turn nowto a bit nore
on the project design, the actual routes that we have
brought forward in order to serve the need, if you can
tal k about those.

A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) Sure. So all three
alternatives, the preferred route, Alternative 1, and
Alternative 2, neet the needs of the project. They | ook
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alittle bit different visually fromthe routings, but
electrically they are basically all the sane. They are
basically all equival ent.

They woul d create -- they would take the
existing line, the PalmValley to Rudd 230kV |ine, cut
in the two new substations, and you would end up with a
new PalmValley to TS-15, a TS-15 to TS-18, and a TS-18
to Rudd 230 line. And you would end up with that in al
three alternatives.

And | will just quickly wal k through. Palm
Valley is off to the west of this picture here, so the
230 line would cone in, would hit this Link 1, go into
TS- 15, across to 18, back down and out to Rudd.

I will point out the existing 230 conductors
t hat are between those connection points would no | onger
be used. The route for the power would be to the new
poi nt of connection up to the two substations and back
down.

And you can see it would be the sane thing for
Alternative 1. It would hit the point of
i nt erconnection, go to the two substations, and then
back down. And even Alternative 2, with the additiona
ups and downs, you would still cone fromthe Pal m Vall ey
substation, hit route 1, you would cone back down to the
original line, back over, back up to the new sub and
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t hen back down and out to Rudd. And in this case, you
woul d no | onger be using the existing 230 bet ween these
two points. You would use the one between these two,
and then we would no | onger use the one between those
two points.

But at the end of the day, they are all Palm
Valley to TS-15 to TS-18 to Rudd. And from an
el ectrical standpoint, the mninal additional distance
bet ween the alternatives from an i npedence standpoi nt
for 230kV lines is pretty insignificant in this case.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Wodall.

MEMBER WOODALL: | amsorry. | may have been
t hi nki ng of another case, but did you indicate that
there is going to be sone transportation i nprovenents in
this area? And if so, could you depict them | nean,
could you show us with your pointer where they are.

| amtrying to figure out if the third one is
going to require nultiple crossings of any
transportation corridor that m ght be in play.

MR. SPI TZKOFF: So we definitely have slides
| ater.

MEMBER WOCDALL: Ckay.

MR, SPITZKCOFF: | think M. Petry, maybe even
M. Larsen.

But just quickly, there is a proposed State
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Route 30, | believe is what it is. And that would be
traversing across fromthe west basically across this
area and down through there. W wll get a better sense
and there is a better slide alittle bit later on.

MEMBER WOODALL: | will wait for himto present
his story for ne. Thank you so nuch.

MR. SPI TZKOFF: You are wel cone.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Gentl es.

MEMBER GENTLES: So just hel p me understand why
Alternative Route No. 2 has so many zig-zags in it as
opposed to the preferred route, and why that Alternative
Route No. 2 is still in play based on the way it | ooks.

MR, SPI TZKOFF: Certainly. So Alternative Route
No. 2 is really where we start fromw th these projects.
We had the first custoner here, and we are |i ke, okay,
we can go up and back to the existing line.

And then the Cycl one project cane out, and okay,
we can go up and back to the existing line. It is still
in play and was in play for awhil e because we were
wor ki ng through with M crosoft predom nantly on what
t heir devel opnment | ooked |ike on their |ands, where
their buildings were going to be, the retenti on areas.
And we did not know if we would be able to traverse
across their land. So we had the options that canme back
to the existing |ine.
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MEMBER GENTLES: Ckay.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Wodall.

MEMBER WOODALL: So the applicant has included
this as an alternative route, which |I assune neans that,
if for sonme reason we select it, you are willing to
build it in that fashion, is that correct?

MR. SPI TZKOFF: That is correct.

MEMBER WOCDALL: Thank you.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Gentles.

MEMBER GENTLES: So is it safe to say that the
preferred route is a | ess expensive option than the
Al ternative Route No. 2?

MR. SPI TZKOFF: | believe so, yes.

MEMBER GENTLES: Ckay.

MR. DERSTINE: W will get to, M. Chairman,
Menber Gentles, we will get to the cost nunbers, but |
think it is roughly $2 mllion |ess.

MR, SPI TZKOFF: And so while we are al so tal king
about the differences of the routes, another difference
wth Alternative Route 2 conpared to Alternative Route 1
and the preferred route, this configuration we would
have to cone across the Western Area Power
Adm nistration's 230 lines and our 69 line two
additional times. So wth the preferred and the
alternate route com ng across Broadway Road, it would be
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one crossing of those lines, and then when we cone back
to the existing line would be a second crossing. Wth
Alternative 2 we would be crossing thema total of four
times instead of two tines.

CHWN. CHENAL: And just one nobre question,
M. Spitzkoff. For your preferred route, what is the
total length of the Iine?

MR. SPI TZKOFF: One second. W have that.

CHWN. CHENAL: Sure. And | think just for
pur poses of the CEC, | nean whatever route we choose we
need to make sure we include the length in the CEC

MR. SPI TZKOFF: Yes. So M. Larsen has it in
his slides. But the preferred route is 1.45 m| es,
Alternative Route 1 is 1.65, and Alternative 2 is 2.2.
And if we use the sub route, it is 1.89 mles. And
there is a table in M. Larsen's slides with that.

CHWN. CHENAL: Al right. And just a note to
the counsel for the applicant, |I think we need to

include the length of the line in the CEC. | am not

sure | saw it in there. Mybe we just didn't have it in

because we didn't know the preferred route. | nay be
m staken, but | want to make sure we include the |ength
in whatever route we select when we discuss it.

MR. DERSTINE: WII do.
BY MR DERSTI NE:
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Q M. Spitzkoff, | think your |ast sub bullet
there on the project design slide notes that no | oad
| oss for single contingencies. | think that goes to the
question that Menber Wodall raised. But can you talk
about that and what that neans.

A (BY MR SPITZKOFF) Yes. So all of these
alternatives neet the reliability goals that we have,
and we could wthstand the | oss of any one el enent

wi t hout the | oss of | oad.

Q And all three of themsatisfy that?
A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) Yes, all three of them
Q And it wouldn't be the case that Alternative

Route 2 is nore robust or provides greater reliability
because it has so nmany -- has the additional |ines and
the line crossings that you referred to?

A (BY MR SPITZKOFF) It would not be greater
reliability. There would be slightly di m nished
reliability, actually, wth additional line mles in
this fashion and the two increased crossings. But it is

all within the sane general reliability factor

Q They all satisfy the N1 contingency?
A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) Yes.
Q And you nentioned the line crossings. | don't

think that's sonething that we have touched on yet, and
it is probably an inportant thing, since you nentioned

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 183 VOL | 09/24/2019 84

it, to explain to the Commttee at this point.

So where is this WAPA |Iine and the crossings
that you are tal king about? That may rai se sone
concerns, depending on which route is sel ected.

A (BY MR SPITZKOFF) Sure. It may be easier if |
could ask the left slides to go up by, | believe, two.
Yeah, at least that's a little bit bigger picture there.

So here is the project, the two project areas.
This is Broadway Road down here. You can see the line
in blue that cones across. That's two WAPA 230kV | i nes.
WAPA is Western Area Power Admi nistration. Those lines
are on a single double-circuit set of towers. They are
on the north side of Broadway Road and they are actually
on the south side of the property for both these
pr oj ects.

There is al so, you can see on here, a green
line, which as you go to the left may be hidden a little
by the blue, but you can see it sort of energing as you
go east a little and then up. That's an APS 69kV |i ne
that's existing. That line is on the south side of
Broadway Road. So those are two lines, as we go from
t he existing corridor here up and down to the sites, we
have to cross those |ines.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Haeni chen.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: It seenms to nme in reading the
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application that the structures are going to be double
circuit capable, is that correct?

MR. SPI TZKOFF: The nonopoles will be doubl e
circuit capable. W are not planning on adding a second
circuit. Just it is generally our standard |ine design
now to -- our structures are double circuit capabl e just
because it is also a nore robust |ine design for the
structures. And there are --

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: But it has got to cost nore
per infrastructure.

MR. SPI TZKOFF: It does cost nore, but it is
pretty insignificant additional cost.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Yes. These lines are pretty
much dedicated lines. | amtal king about the ones you
are going to build. They are never going to require the
second circuit, right?

MR. SPI TZKOFF: | never say never, but it is
hi ghly unlikely.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Thank you.

BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q And to your point, you said that the nonopol es
wi |l be double circuit capable. However, a nunmber of
structures are Hframe structures, and there is not a
way to build those on double circuit, right?

A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) No, not these H-franes.
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Q Ckay. Any ot her features about the design, the
electrical systemthat you think is inportant to point

out for the Commttee?

A (BY MR SPITZKOFF) | think | covered everything
| want ed.

Q Ckay. Well, I think you are done for the
nmonent. Qur next chapter is going to hand off to

M. Larsen.

M. Larsen, for this portion of our case
presentation we are going to have you cover the project
devel opnent, kind of the steps involved in bringing this
project forward to the point that we are here today,
have you cover the routes, how those routes cane to be,
and sonme of the key features of the routes, and then the
corridor we will be asking for in order for the
pl acenent of the, of the project once we get to final
desi gn.

Let's start wth just kind of give us an
overview of kind of the steps that were involved from
the early concept, that is the communi cations with
M crosoft, understand where their project is, and we
have the request to provide service, and kind of how you
wal ked t hrough and wor ked t hrough the process of
bringing this project forward in the application.

A (BY MR LARSEN) Okay. Yes. And as
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M. Spitzkoff has said, obviously it starts with the
need to serve these custoners.

One of the first things that we do is identify
prelimnary |links that would connect into the existing
| i ne and serve these custoners, and then also determ ne
the prelimnary study area, which we use a pretty big
buffer around all the alternatives.

But we take these prelimnary |inks and then go
t hrough a public process, stakehol der outreach, and we
refine those links and elim nate sone, change sone of
them slightly based on comments or feedback that we have
received. And then we conbine those links, if you wll,
into separate routes, and in this case into the three
routes that we are carrying forward today. And then
al so, fromthere, we select our preferred alternative.

Q Thank you.

Let ne have you talk a bit about those first two
bullets, your prelimnary study area and your
prelimnary |links. Can you show us those.

A (BY MR LARSEN) Yes. | wll start out here
again with the map on the left. You will see these
dashed blue |ines, a nunber of them going north and
sout h, east and west al ong the Broadway alignnent
roughly a little bit on the Litchfield Road alignnent
right here, and also continuing to the east al ong
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Br oadway Road.

Al'l of these Iinks would connect to the Palm
Val | ey-Rudd |i ne down on the south, and even the one
going to the east woul d connect back into the sane |ine,
other than it would go a lot further to the east.

We devel oped the study area, which is this, the
dashed dark |line, kind of the odd shaped el ephant in the
roomif you want. And this is based on a two-nmle
buffer off of any of these alternatives and the project
sites.

And fromthis prelimnary study area, that
determ nes where we cone up with our nailing list, a
list of all the residences, property owners, again key
st akehol ders such as City of Goodyear, Goodyear Airport,
ADOT, City of Avondale. And again, we then mail to this
entire area as well as hold separate neetings with sone
of the stakehol ders, and then received input back from
themto further refine the links to elimnate sone and
t hen again refine.

| do want to just point out here real quick on
this first one, the prelimnary link, all of the routes
wer e shown east, west al ong Broadway because we didn't
bel i eve there was adequate space to go onto the
M crosoft property. So that's kind of how we got to the
prelimnary |inks.
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Q All right. Thank you.

I just want to make sure | understand it. So
this irregular shape that was the prelimnary study area
was | argely driven by the fact that you had or exam ned
and anal yzed an i nterconnection point for the Palm
Vall ey-Rudd line to the east. That's that red triangle
there on the eastern side, or the right side of the map,
is that right?

A (BY MR LARSEN) That's correct. This is the
Rudd substation. And yes, this was in our prelimnary
l'inks. And throughout the public process we determ ned
the Gty of Avondal e was opposed to that, as well as a
| ot of the property owners. And there are al so sone
honme devel opers over in this area.

Q Ckay.

A (BY MR LARSEN) So that was, as you will see in
t he next screen, that that was one of the prelimnary
i nks that was renobved.

Q Ckay. So this prelimnary study area and these
prelimnary |links, that's what went out to residents
wthin that |large ringed area, and stakehol ders and
affected jurisdictions. They received this map as wel |
as notice of the open house and informati on about this
project. And this prelimnary study was used as kind of
your initial outreach for the project. 1Is that right?
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A (BY MR LARSEN) That's correct. And | should

have nentioned that. Thank you for bringing that up.

Yes, this was nailed out to over 13,000 people
who were on the mailing list. And we invited themto a
publ i c open house where they could | earn about the
project, provide input, provide themw th our website,
our project phone line, our project ennils, and the
nunmer ous ways that they could provide coments.

Q And we are going to dig into the public
engagenent process and cover that in greater depth, but
for purposes of understandi ng the devel opment of the
project, this is the information that went out and then,
| think what | heard you say is, received feedback from
st akehol ders as well as residents that then pronpted APS
to then elimnate that eastern interconnection option
and those eastern links, and that got us to kind of our
final study area, is that right?

A (BY MR LARSEN) That's correct.

Q So let's take a | ook at the next stage of the
proj ect devel opment and the refined study area. Tell us
what we are | ooking at here.

A (BY MR LARSEN) Here you will notice that the
study area is slightly small er, again, because we did
elimnate the link that cane over to the east. | do
want to point out that to all the nmailings we kept the
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prelimnary siting study area, so we nailed to the ful
study area even | ater on.

Q Let ne stop you there. So what you are saying
is you used the prelimnary study area for your
mai | i ngs, even though we had | ater at a subsequent stage
refined it down to the snaller study area by elimnating
the eastern interconnection point, is that right?

A (BY MR LARSEN) That's correct. And really
this was a nore detail ed study of the remaining |inks
and, when we were refining themand working theminto
alternatives, just a nore detailed look in this smaller
study area. But other than that, the |arger study area
was still used for the mailings.

Q Ckay. And so this refined study area dropped
out sone of those early links, and it appears that,
what, what you have now in the project study area are
the routes and the links that are -- that run south of
the two, the Wl dcat and the Cyclone, projects, is that
right?

A (BY MR LARSEN) That's correct. And | did just
want to point out that during the refinement process, we
did meet with Mcrosoft and were able to find space
avail able on their property for the tie between the two
substations. That was part of the public input we
received, was to put it north onto the customers and off
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the private | andowners to the south of Broadway. And we
kind of heard the sane thing over here on Litchfield,
and renoved a line or prelimnary |link due to sone of
the residents that canme out and wanted us to nove it
further west.

Q Ckay.

A (BY MR LARSEN) So we did take these and then
devel oped theminto the three distinct routes that we
are carrying forward today.

Q All right. So let's tal k about those. Show us,
gi ve us an overview of those three routes, the preferred
and the two alternatives.

A (BY MR LARSEN) GCkay. Again, here, you have
seen this before. And it is also up on one side of your
placemat. And we will talk in a little nore detai
about each one of these. | wll thank M. Spitzkoff for
al ready giving you a very good i dea of what each one is.
It makes it a little sinpler for me. So thank you.

Anyway, so the first preferred alternative,
again, it does cone up fromthis, the point where this
Pal m Val l ey-Rudd line jogs to the north. W
i nterconnect there and go alnost directly north, and
t hen angle over into the Mcrosoft -- or the Cyclone
project, also Mcrosoft, now !l amsaying it wong,

Wl dcat site or the Mcrosoft site. W renmained on
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their property comng over into the Cyclone substation.
And then we cane al nost directly south and tied into the
exi sting structure down here on the Palm Valley Iline.

For the Alternate Route 1, again, the first
pi eces are all the sane. The difference is we do cone
to the south and then build a small section al ong
Broadway Road to the east, and then down the eastern
property line and back into the Rudd |ine.

And again, on Alternative 2, this was kind of
the way the project started. Oiginally we considered
potentially even doing two separate CECs, one coning up
and back down for the Wldcat site, and then another CEC
for the project comng up and out of the Cyclone site.
But as this project evolved, we were able to conbi ne
these into one and build it all at one tine rather than
in two different phases.

Q I think in a couple additional slides that kind
of highlights the key features of the preferred and the
two alternative routes. Can you cover those.

A (BY MR LARSEN) Yes. W touched briefly on
this, but the preferred route is 1.45 mles. 54 percent
of it is on custoners' data center |and, again, was what
we heard fromthe public. And we were able to get that
pi ece there. 44 percent is on private land to the
south. And 2 percent of the line crosses over the
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Br oadway Road, which is Goodyear | and.

CHWN. CHENAL: M. Spitzkoff, | had a question.
| would |like to know the | and ownership. If we could
see the alternative, the preferred and the
Alternative 1. |Is there a way to put that up on the
screen agai n?

All right. Preferred goes straight down the
maddle. It is at segnent 7. And then on Alternative 2,
you have the southern link, Link 9 is further to the
east. So who owns, | nean, the lot, or the | and there?

It seens just from| ooking at the diagrans that
one link, 7, kind of |ooks like it bisects the |and,
whereas Link 10, Link 10 on the preferred one seens |ike
it is, | don't know, on the eastern side or runs down a
road or street or sonmething. And | just can't tell very
well from | ooking at the di agrams.

But, you know, | just, you know, want to nake
sure that we are not putting the Iine down the m ddl e of
soneone's farm and and we haven't heard fromt hat
person, if | am maki ng any sense.

VMR. DERSTI NE: M. Chairman and M. Larsen, if
could, we will use the resources of our panel. Since
M. Petry did the | and use anal ysis and knows those
i ssues pretty well, maybe he can speak to that i1issue and
tal k about | and ownership, as well as kind of what sort
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of inmpacts Link 7 has in conparison to Link 10.

MR. PETRY: Certainly. And if we could,
progress to just the preferred route slide for a nonent.

So, M. Chairman, you correctly identified that
within that area south of the WIldcat and Cycl one data
center sites there are a few | andowners, but the bul k of
agricultural land there is under one owner. And Link 1
as shown on the preferred route, as well as all routes,
is on the western boundary of that | andowner's parcel.

Link 7 as identified on the preferred route does
also follow an agricultural field row and road, but it
does bisect that parcel of land. That is one of the
reasons we identified Alternative Route 1. And if we
could progress to that slide, please, you correctly
identified that Link 9 and 10 would be noved to the
peri meter of that particular parcel and would foll ow
sone of the existing roads there as well.

CHWN. CHENAL: So first question | have -- and |
don't know, we have a few questions probably -- is:
Does the | andowner where Link, get the links right, 7
bi sects -- | use the word bisects -- that property, is
t hat | andowner agreeable to the preferred route?

MR, SPI TZKOFF: So we have been talking with the
| andowner a nunber of occasions. You know, they are
supportive of both the preferred and alternative. W

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 183 VOL | 09/24/2019 96

are still working wwth that | andowner, and at the end of
t he day, which would be sort of the best route for what

their future use and current uses are. You know, there

are benefits to being on the western edge, not bisecting
it, but there is also sone challenges to Link 9 and

Link 10, you know, that we are talking with the

| andowner about.

CHWN. CHENAL: But if we go with your
recommendati on, the applicant's recommendati on, and
choose, were we to issue a CEC, your preferred route,
and you are in discussions with the | andowner, at the
end of the day the | andowner says no, | really don't
want it to be Link 7, you know, | want it to be where it
is depicted as Link 10, | nean, now you are left with --
| mean, | hate to use the word condemnati on or em nent
domai n, but that's where you are left, | think, if the
| andowner doesn't agree.

So | amjust anticipating, you know, how do we,
how do we deal wth that issue. | nean we are talking
about splitting soneone's land. It just seens like it
is a problemw thout knowi ng what the | andowner prefers.

MR DERSTINE: | think it is inportant -- you
are right, | think, what you have outlined in terns of
t he process.

As M. Spitzkoff has testified, and what we
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understand, is that there have been ongoi ng and

| ongst andi ng di scussions wth the | andowner who owns
that entire parcel between Link 1 and Link 10. It is
one | andowner. It is currently being farned by a

| ongst andi ng ranch or farm ng operation in the valley.

And so the biggest concerns of the | andowner are
as to the inpacts on the farm ng operation, at | east
here in the near term And so those -- we have al so had
di scussions with the farmoperator. And | think
M. Petry can maybe speak to kind of what are those, the
differing i npacts on the agricul tural operations between
the preferred and Alternative Route 1.

MR. PETRY: Certainly. And | will be able to
touch on this in nore detail later in ny testinony as
well when | talk in further detail about the | and use
i mpact s.

But when conparing Link 7 versus Links 9 and 10,
or preferred route versus Alternative Route 1, what we
see is that the preferred route is shorter and, by
virtue of that reduced |length, would result in fewer
i npacts to the agricultural operations within that
parcel. Link 9 and 10 travel a |onger distance and, by
virtue again of that increased length, would result in
addi ti onal i npacts.

In addition to that point, the conceptual siting
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or locations of the Link 7 on the preferred route does
follow a roadway, a w de roadway that cuts through those
agricultural fields as well. So the idea is that,
because of that |ocation, inpacts to agricultural

operati ons would be reduced as well.

The sane is true for Links 9 and 10.

M. Spitzkoff nentioned that there may be sone
conflicts, in particular, with Link 9 as it travels

al ong east to west on the south side of Broadway Road.
There are sone wells and other agricultural facilities
in that location as well that could be inpacted by the
pr oj ect.

Link 10 on the far eastern portion of
Alternative Route 1 is also simlar to Link 7, placed
al ong a roadway. So between both the preferred and
Alternative Route 1, we have tried to place those in
| ocations that would m nim ze those inpacts to
agricultural operations, understanding that this is an
area that, you know, future |l and use indicates wll be
devel oped for m xed use devel opnents, conmerci al
devel opnents, industrial devel opnents, as well as a
pl anned freeway.

CHWN. CHENAL: Well, if it is for future
devel opnment, | nean it just seens if | amthe | andowner
| would rather have Link 10 than Link 7. But | just --
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let's do this. Let nme ask -- Menber Nol and has a
questi on.

VEMBER NOLAND: M. Chairman, M. Petry, it
appears to ne that No. 1 and No. 7 are al ong section
lines, is that correct?

MR. PETRY: | believe both of those |ocations
are actually along quarter sections or quarter quarter
sections, yes.

MEMBER NCLAND: Ckay. And you tal ked about on
No. 7 that there is a roadway there. |Is it a dedicated
public right-of-way or is it a private road for the
far n®?

MR. PETRY: M/ understanding is it is a private
road for the farm

MEMBER NOLAND: And the sane with No. 1.

MR. PETRY: Yes.

MEMBER NCLAND: Ckay. M. Chairman, in nmany
cases we have approved routes where they did not have
the right-of-way | ocked down or an agreenent | ocked down
wth the various owners along the way. You know, it
cones down to a final agreenent or whatever. And just
because they don't have it right now doesn't bother ne
as much as ensuring that it is along a section line or a
quarter section line or a half section |ine, which nmakes
sense. And as you can tell, they have different things
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farmed in those areas, so they have done a natural break
in those areas anyway.

Thank you.

CHWN. CHENAL: Thank you. Thank you, Menber
Nol and.

Menber Wbodal | .

MEMBER WOODALL: So has the property owner filed
any |letters of support, nonsupport? Have they expressed
to you their preferences in that regard? | think, |
t hought | heard you say they were supportive of either
the preferred or the Alternative 1. Did | mshear that?

MR, SPI TZKOFF: No. | indicated that, yes.

MEMBER WOODALL: Ckay. And if you did need to
acquire the right-of-way and you couldn't get it from
hi m you know, through agreenent, does APS have the
power of an em nent donmai n? And naybe that's a | egal
questi on.

MR. DERSTINE: M. Chairman, Menber Wodall, |
think at the end of the day APS does have the ability to
seek condemmation. But that's certainly not --

MEMBER WOODALL: O course, of course. |
under st and.

MR, DERSTI NE: Yeah.

MEMBER WOODALL: | just wanted to -- so it | ooks
li ke the property owner is okay wwth it. It |ooks |ike
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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you can be able to do it by purchase, and if not, you
have, 1'll say, the nuclear option. And | will just
call it that.

Thank you very much.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Gentles.

MEMBER CGENTLES: So you get the -- and forgive
me if this is a question that doesn't nake any sense,
but --

CHWN. CHENAL: | have been asking them all
afternoon. So you are in good conpany.

MEMBER GENTLES: You have gi ven ne enough cover
then. Thank you.

So, you know, | amjust trying to wap ny mnd
around as well the | andowner having the | and bi sected by
nunber 7, simlar to the Chairman's question. So if we
approve the CEC and you haven't worked out the agreenent
with the | andowner, and knowi ng that you have em nent
donmain, tell nme, just froma | ayperson's perspective,
what does that do for negotiation wth that | andowner.

D d that nake sense?

MR. DERSTI NE: It did.

CHWN. CHENAL: | thought it made sense. It nade
t he applicant feel unconfortable.

MR. DERSTINE: | amtrying --

MEMBER GENTLES: Again --
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MR. DERSTINE: | think the answer to your
question -- and it is a good one, Menber CGentles -- is
that, as the witness has testified, we have been having
ongoi ng di scussi ons and negotiations. And as these
cases oftentines go, early discussions about
right-of-way and line | ocations then change later in the
case, and we start, you know, getting different opinions
or questions and vi ewpoi nts.

And so our early discussions to secure the
right-of-way for the preferred route have recently | ed
to sone questions, you know, about what about
Alternative Route 1. So | think where we are is that

this | andowner is supportive of the project. They

understand that this project will be built. It is a
question of where those lines will go.
And our viewis that we will, APS will do what

it can in ternms of final design in pole placenent to
mnimze the inpacts on the current farm ng operations.
| think the uncertainty that we are facing nowis sinply
that, you know, we are getting sone m xed nessages from
the farm ng operator and the | andowner.

And so it is not unusual; it is part of the
di scussi on process. And, you know, | think at the end
of the day, we are of the viewoint that we can
negotiate wth this | andowner and secure the
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right-of-way for the preferred route, and that that
remains the best route for the reasons that M. Petry
i ndi cated, that the inpacts by virtue of the shorter
line, less structures on the | and, make it the best
route.

It is along a quarter section line, kind of the
natural break in the farm ng operations. And | think
you will get a better sense of that fromthe virtual
tour and an actual tour when you go out and take a | ook
at the property and where we woul d propose to put either
the preferred route or Alternative Route 1

But at the end of the day, | think, as we have
i ndi cated, we can and will build any of these routes.
And if it is the view of the Commttee that Alternative
Route 1 is the better route, given the inpacts, then we
w |l be happy to build it.

MEMBER GENTLES: So, Chair, M. Derstine, thank
you. | didn't nmean to put you on the spot or make you
feel confortable, just a general question. Thank you.

MR. DERSTI NE: Thank you.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Haenichen | saw, and then
we wll go to Menber Nol and and t hen Menber Wbodal l .

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: During the course of neetings
w th | andowners and ot hers, bystanders even, have any
vi ewshed i ssues conme up? This is sonething we conmonly
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see in cases.

MR. DERSTINE: | amgoing to refer your
questi on, Menber Haeni chen, to M. Petry.

MR. PETRY: Menber Haeni chen, yes, they have.
The primary | ocati ons where we heard concerns about
vi ewsheds were represented in the public open house
meeting held in early June, wherein we had a groupi ng of
residents who are |l ocated on the east side of Litchfield
Road, generally in the location | am pointing to here.

And what we heard fromthose residents is that
they didn't want to see lines as they | ooked west from
their house. M. Larsen indicated previously that sone
of those prelimnary |links that were shown i ncl uded
links that went north and south along Litchfield Road
here. And that was one of the reasons that those |inks
wer e elim nated.

We al so did hear sone concerns from | andowners
to the south of the project, primarily a couple
residents | ocated here, south of Link 14, wherein they
al so expressed the desire for those alternates to be as
far north as possible, putting them nore on the data
center sites as opposed to the private part.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: For the benefit the Conmmttee
menbers then, | amtal king about vi ewshed i ssues now
that you just responded to, which of the three proposed
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sites had the | east conpl aints about?

MR. PETRY: Well, at the point at which we were
out at public neetings, we had not yet devel oped the
t hree proposed routes. But when it cane to those
prelimnary |links that we had identified at that tine,
it was those |inks that travel ed al ong Broadway Road and
those that traveled along Litchfield Road where we heard
t he nost concern about viewshed i npacts.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Thank you.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Nol and.

MEMBER NOLAND: Thank you, M. Chairnman.

M. Petry, isn't it true, or it appears to ne
that there is nore of an inpact to that one property
owner in Alternative Route 1 than in the preferred route
because of the southern part of Broadway Road that -- if
you have it, if you could put that up there, please,
with No. 9, No. 9. There would be inpact on that
property along No. 9 as well as No. 10, is that correct?

MR. PETRY: That is correct. The |ocation of
Link No. 9, again, is on the south side of Broadway
Road. It is also in a location where there is existing
69kV i nfrastructure.

But you are correct, it would be Link 9 and 10
where the line would travel in those |ocations, which
woul d equate to a | onger distance than Link 7 on the
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MEMBER NOLAND: And nore of an inpact as far as

the need for right-of-way --

MR. PETRY: Yes.

MEMBER NOLAND: -- fromthat particul ar owner of
the property, is that correct?

MR PETRY: Yes.

MEMBER NCOLAND: Ckay.

CHWN. CHENAL: Thank you.

Menmber Wbodal | .

MEMBER WOCDALL: So are you going to acquire
easenents or fee sinple, do you know? O is that stil
up in the air based on your negotiations wth the
| andowner ?

MR. LARSEN. Can you repeat.

MEMBER WOCODALL: | amsorry. Are you going to
acqui re easenent over the lands, or will you be
acquiring fee sinple title to it?

MR. LARSEN. No, they will be easesnents.

MEMBER WOCDALL: Ckay.

MR. LARSEN. And he has been agreeable in the
fact that he will grant us the easenents. It is just we

are goi ng back and forth on whi ch ones.
MEMBER WOODALL: Sure. Thank you.
MR. DERSTINE: And M. Petry, | just want to
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circle back with regard to Menber Haeni chen's question
about visual inpacts, tying into Menber Nol and's
questions on 9 and 10.

As | am | ooking at the map on the left screen,
it appears that in terns of viewshed inpacts, Links 9
and 10 will have the greatest inpact to those viewers
who are in those residences there to the northeast, and
that by putting the |Iine out on al ong Broadway Road,
that also creates visual inpacts. |Is that a fair
st at ement ?

MR. PETRY: Yes, it is. As | indicated
previously, the residents | ocated on the east side of
Litchfield Road in this general area did express a
concern for viewshed inpacts. And Links 9 and 10, as
conpared to Link 7, would bring those structures cl oser
to their hones and, therefore, have a higher inpact to
vi sual resources.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Wodall.

MEMBER WOODALL: So | had a question about the
nunber of structures that would be going from-- on the
preferred route that would be going through the

property, through the property owner with whomyou are

dealing. | think it would be between -- is it Link 8
and 7? | just want to know how many structures would be
t here.
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Yes. Thank you for pointing, because | would
blind nyself with this. | use this only for ny cat. So
t hank you.

MR. SPI TZKOFF: So yes, basically Link 7 there,
fromthe south of Broadway Road to the existing line I
believe is where you are asking.

MEMBER WOODALL: Yes. | want to know how many
structures would be, if you acquire this particul ar
easenent, how many structures would there be through the
| andowner's property. And | understand you have given
vari ous di stances, but give ne a ball park.

MR. SPI TZKOFF: So pending the final design, it
actually would be nost |ikely one structure or two
structures, one structure as we cross over fromthe
north side of Broadway Road to the south side to | and on
the south side in an Hfranme structure. And then final
design wll determine if we can do a single span all the
way to the existing line or if we would need one
addi tional structure in the mddle. But it would be
t hat one structure, naybe two structures.

MEMBER WOODALL: Thank you very nuch. That was
important information for ne. | appreciate it.

CHWN. CHENAL: And was that for, M. Spitzkoff,
before we get to Menber Haenichen, was that -- were you
speaki ng about Link 77
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MR, SPI TZKOFF:  Yes.

CHWN. CHENAL: Thank you.

Menber Haeni chen.

VEMBER HAENI CHEN: M. Larsen, the last thing I
recall you saying is that you are going back and forth
wth certain entities about nuances of what |ine or what
pl acenent woul d be the | east onerous to them

Here is ny concern. Could sone of those
di scussions lead to a preference for a | ocation
different than the one that this Commttee ultinmately
all ows the conpany if we do i ssue a CEC?

MR. LARSEN: | don't believe so.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Thank you.

MR LARSEN. | can't say that for certain, but I
don't believe so. | think whatever the Committee
ultimately decides, we will be able to work that out

wth the | andowner.
MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Thank you.
BY MR DERSTI NE:
Q M. Larsen, we stole the show fromyou a little
bit, but why don't you finish up with -- you touched on
the highlights of the preferred route. Wy don't you do

the sane for Alternative Route 1 and Alternative

Rout e 2.
A (BY MR LARSEN) Sure. And I think, again,
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everyone is fairly famliar with what Al ternative

Route 1 is now. It is slightly longer. 50 percent of
it is still on custoner lands. But there is a little
bit nore inpact on the private land in this alternative.

And Alternate Route 2, as we talked, is
considerably -- well, it is not considerably |onger, but
it is the longest of the three routes. | wll say that
fromthe | andowner's perspective, he does not support
this and would not agree to all of these lines north and
south al ong his property.

CHWN. CHENAL: M. Derstine, could you then
translate the slide on the right, which is the
Alternative Route 2, the sub route, what -- just kind of
wal k us through an exanpl e of what you nmean

MR. LARSEN. Sure. Yes, | kind of skimed over
that. But the first main bullet here is for the main
route, Alternative 2, which would conme down and to the
south back into the existing |line, back up out and al ong
Br oadway and down Link 10. The sub bullet is what we
call the sub route, which was this Link 6. And if we
built Link 6, it is alittle bit shorter and you would
not need, or 7. However, that does create a nuch bigger
i mpact on the isolated residents right here as well as
the | andowner on the north side of his property.

CHWN. CHENAL: All right. Thank you.
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MEMBER NCLAND: M. Chairman.

CHMN. CHENAL: Yes, Menber Nol and.

MEMBER NOLAND: The City of Goodyear |and, is
t hat al ong Broadway?

MR. LARSEN. Yes. That's just basically the
Br oadway Road ri ght - of - way.

MEMBER NOLAND: Ri ght-of-way, thank you.

MR LARSEN: Ri ght.
BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q The next topic that we are going to tal k about
is corridor. But before we do that, | guess | want to
enphasi ze what | heard you say is, as you wal ked us

t hrough t he devel opnent of the project, you started with
this prelimnary study area and an eastern connection
poi nt was considered, and it was through the public
process and what we heard fromresidents and the
jurisdictions that you need to push nmore of this project
onto the Wl dcat and the Cycl one properties.

And we went, we went back to the data center
owners and we tal ked about that to them and we then
devel oped routes that cane forward as the preferred and
Alternative Route 1 that did that. That is that, rather
t han pushing all the structures on south of the project,
we were able to come up with a design that pushed a big
portion of the project onto the data center sites. |Is
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t hat an accurate statenent?

A (BY MR LARSEN) That is very accurate, that we
were able to go back and work with Mcrosoft to find a
| ocation that didn't interfere with their operations or
the facilities, and yet it took the burden off of the
private | andowners to the south.

Q Ckay. Thank you.

And that -- go ahead.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Haeni chen.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Before | forget, | would hope
t hat tonorrow when we do the tour, that you, your
representative, will tie in all of these coments we
have been nmki ng about issues relating to the | andowners
so we can actually be standing on the thing that we are
t al ki ng about .

Thank you.

MR. LARSEN. Yeah. And if | just mght add to
that, absolutely, and I think those of you that do go on
the tour, it really gives you a much better picture than
what you can get fromthese naps, or even the virtual
flyover which you will later see.

BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q So let's tal k about corridor and right-of-way.
And | nentioned in ny opening in the application we
asked for a 500-foot corridor, but that has changed and
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we are asking for a broader corridor on the data center
property. Wat we are show ng on the left screen there
is what we have cone up with in terns of our corridor
map for the preferred route.

Tal k us through that and why we have broadened
or w dened the request on the data center sites and what
benefits that may gi ve.

A (BY MR LARSEN) Yes. As you said, we did
request a 500-foot corridor in our application. And we
are still asking for a 500-foot request on these, on the
private property parcels.

We are asking for a variable corridor up here on
the data center properties. The reason why is to give
us sone leeway, if for sone reason we can't drop in and
out of the substation as we show here, that we would
have a little roomto work out the final design there.

Al so, the distance here, we are asking for a
| arger one because we wanted to neasure, first of all,
for ease in defining the corridor fromthe north side of
Br oadway Road, and again, we wanted to make sure that in
the final design we could avoid any of the conflicts,
you know, with the Mcrosoft facilities, their access,

their water, sewer, and all of those type of conflicts.

Q | apol ogi ze, M. Larsen. | was gesturing. |
think this mght be the right time to hand out -- we
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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have got maps that show these corridors that --
A (BY MR LARSEN) | am sorry, yes.

MR. DERSTINE: And M. Chairman, we had tal ked
about, during our prehearing conference, about how we
i ntended to describe the route and define its place on a
map and to further define the corridor. So this is our
effort at doing that. And we will --

MR. LARSEN: And if | could add, those are on

your i Pads as well.

MR. DERSTINE: | guess for the record, we
wll -- | will hand one of the copies to the court
reporter, but the preferred corridor map wll be APS-22,
and the Alternative Route 1 corridor nmap will be APS-23.

MEMBER WOODALL: VWhat | wanted to ask was: W
have this | arge size exhibit; were you contenpl ati ng
that this size exhibit, if we grant you a CEC, that
woul d be attached to the CEC?

MR. DERSTI NE: No.

MEMBER WOODALL: So it is going to be reduced in
si ze?

MR, DERSTI NE: Yes.

MEMBER WOODALL: And you woul d anticipate it
woul d be what size?

MR. DERSTINE: Well, | anticipate that it would
be eight and a half by 11 so we could ultimately file it
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w th Docket and the Comm ssion.

MEMBER WOODALL: Ckay. That's what | thought.
| just wanted to confirmon the record.

MR. DERSTINE: Yeah. | think we used this
| arger format because it is easier to see.

MEMBER WOODALL: O course, of course. Thank
you very nuch.
BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q So M. Larsen, you have tal ked about the reason
for the broader wwdth. Wth regard to the land to the
south, if I am|looking at that correctly, we are still
only seeking a 500-foot corridor for that portion of the
project, is that right?

A (BY MR LARSEN) That is correct.

Q But within that 500 feet, that allows APS to
negoti ate and get input fromthat |andowner in terns of
the final pole placenent and the final design of the
project that would help mtigate any sort of inpacts on
ongoi ng farm ng operations, is that true?

A (BY MR LARSEN) That's correct. That woul d
allow us to work with himon the | ocations that woul d
m nim ze the inpacts.

Q Ckay. And it is the sane for, we are | ooking at
the preferred corridor map, but it wll be the sane for,
for the corridor map for Alternative Route 1; we are
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asking for a 500-foot corridor with regard to that, that
sout hern | and, but, again, the broader corridor is to
allow for final design on the data center canpuses?

A (BY MR LARSEN) That's correct.

Q Anything else that's inportant for the Conmmttee
to know or understand about the corridors or the
ri ght - of -way?

I guess we haven't touched on the right-of-way.
How much ri ght-of-way are we seeki ng?

A (BY MR LARSEN) | amsorry. W wll be asking
for a 120-foot right-of-way. However, if there are sone
pl aces that we are limted to 100 feet, we can live with
that. But we would |like to have a 120-foot ultimte
right-of-way within that corridor.

Q Ckay. And since we have handed out what we
propose to be the Exhibit A as the description of
what ever, of the route, that's if the Conmttee were to
grant us a CEC, for the preferred or the alternative
route, those maps woul d be attached to the CEC and woul d
descri be the |ine.

M. Petry, can you kind of wal k us through what
is shown on those, the Exhibit As, those corridor nmaps?
Because there is also then a narrative portion. Tell us
what all that is.

A (BY MR PETRY) Certainly. So these
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corridors -- and maybe we could go back to the preferred
route corridor to use that as an exanple. The nmappi ng
product that you see here illustrates the corridors and
corresponds with the narrative we have devel oped as wel |l
to describe those corridors.

And what we have tried to do is place these
corridors at | ocations where we have a good baseline for
reference. For exanple, if you look at Link 1 on the
western portion of the preferred route, that |ink and
that corridor is based off the property boundary, the
western portion of this property boundary, or Assessor's
Parcel No. 500-80-015A. And it would be a 500-f oot
corridor extending to the east fromthe westernnost
portion of that property.

Simlarly, where you see Link 7 on the eastern
portion of the preferred route, the conceptual alignnent
or the center line of that corridor is based on an
extension of the property line to the north. Because in
this general |ocation, the property to the south, there
IS no property boundary there. W have extended the
property |line between the Cycl one and Wl dcat site to
the south with a 250-foot buffer on either side of that
boundary.

CHMN. CHENAL: Menber Nol and.

(An audi o di sturbance occurred.)

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 183 VOL | 09/24/2019 118

MEMBER NCLAND: Thank you.

M. Petry, parcels that are designated as 14D,
14E and 14C, are those different property owners than
t he main owner that you are dealing wth?

MR. PETRY: M heart is still racing fromthat
sound. Bear wth ne for a nonent.

MEMBER NCLAND: M ne, too.

CHWN. CHENAL: Before you answer, M. Petry,
Menber Nol and, could | ask you to point those out with
t he | aser pointer.

MEMBER NOLAND: Sure. 14D, 14E | ooks |ike an
easenent or a right-of-way around that parcel, and then
14C i s just south of Broadway and west of the proposed,
or the quarter section |ine.

VR. PETRY: Menber Noland, | will start with
Parcel No. 500-80-014C, which is inmredi ately west of
Link 7 on the south side of Broadway Road. That parce
is owned by the sane owner as the |larger area to the
sout h, including 014A and 015A. That is all one owner.

Parcel s 14D and 14E are owned by two separate
entities or individuals. 14E is, | think as you
indicated, | believe that they are canal |aterals that
enconpass the eastern and southern portion of the
residence that is under separate ownership of
Par cel 14D
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CHWMN. CHENAL: W have | ost the vol une.

MR. PETRY: Parcel 14D, which is |ocated right
here where | ampointing, is a separate owner. So
bet ween 14D, 14E, C, and A there are three separate
owners. 14C and 14A is under the sanme ownership. 14D
is a separate owner, and 14E is a separate owner as
wel | .

MEMBER NOLAND: Then, M. Chairman, M. Petry,
t he proposed corridor and future easenent or
right-of-way really doesn't inpact that one parcel
that's privately owned or the canal alignnment, potenti al
canal alignnent, since the sane owner for 14C is the
owner of the majority of the rest of the farmland, is
that correct?

MR. PETRY: That is correct.

MEMBER NOLAND: Ckay. Thank you.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Wodall.

MEMBER WOODALL: | amafraid to approach the
m cr ophone.

So 14D and 14E did receive notice of the project
as proposed and of the open houses, is that correct?

MR, PETRY: Yes.

MEMBER WOCDALL: | know as part of your public
process you take comments. D d you get any comments
fromthe owners of those two aforenentioned parcel s?
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MR PETRY: Yes.

MEMBER WOODALL: GCkay. And you w || address
t hose in due course?

MR. PETRY: And | am happy to address them now
as wel | .

MEVMBER WOODALL: | don't want to interrupt you.
That's not true. W all know that | would be
interrupti ng you anyway. But yes, if you wouldn't m nd
sumari zi ng t hose.

MR, PETRY: W had already nentioned the fact
that sone of the | andowners to the south expressed a
desire to place the facility on the data center parcels
wher ever possible. And that was what we have heard from
t hose | andowners and residents as wel|.

MEMBER WOODALL: Thank you very nuch, sir.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Gentles.

MEMBER GENTLES: | am afrai d.
| assune, | assunme that when we get to the
public comment stage of your testinony that we wll have

a full accounting of what that public coment, those
public comrents were.

MR. PETRY: | am happy to share the details of
t hose public comments. The bulk of the comments, again,
expressed a desire to place those lines north of or on
the data center parcels.
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MEMBER CGENTLES: | think you wll find that |
am-- | get interested in public corment so | have
context. So when we get to that point, if you have sone

spreadsheet or sone report that kind of outlines, you
know, all the relevant public comment, that would be
really good.

So t hank you.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Hamnay.

MEMBER HAMMAY: | will just speak really | oud.
Ckay?

Now | have forgotten what | was going to say.
Oh, so when you had your public outreach, you only
showed them preferred route 2?7 Was that the first thing
they saw? Have, the people who presented comments, have
t hey seen the preferred route?

MR PETRY: So | will step back and start with
what we presented at the public open house neeting in
early June. The newsletter that was sent out to the
entirety of that prelimnary study area, which included
over 13,000 entities, included the prelimnary |inks
map, and that showed sone of those |links that M. Larsen
had descri bed previously. They were not yet broken into
routes or preferred or any alternatives. They were
shown individually as |links that could be connected in
order to nake a full connection fromthe PalmValley to
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Rudd line into the TS-15 and 18 substati ons.

Subsequent to that open house neeting, and after
heari ng sone input fromthe public, as | nentioned,
wherein they expressed a desire to push facilities
further west of Litchfield Road and further north of
Br oadway, we then refined those |links further, renoved
sonme of those links that were in those |ocations, and,
wher e possi ble, noved themonto the Mcrosoft facility.

Fol l owi ng that renoval of |inks and creation of
the preferred and alternative routes, in order to
provide notice of today's hearing, this week's hearing,
we sent out additional mailings to that sane |ist of
over 13,000 people. And with that mailing, we included
the three route alternative naps, the preferred,
Alternative 1, and Alternative 2.

MEMBER HAMMY: Ckay. Thank you.

MR. PETRY: You are wel cone.

BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q And can | ask, M. Petry, the initial, or the
prelimnary |inks that went out that menbers of the
public had an opportunity to review and conment upon at
t he open house, did those |inks include what cane
forward in the preferred and Alternati ve Route 17

A (BY MR PETRY) They did, except for those |inks
that were created or pushed north onto the WIdcat and
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Cycl one data center sites.

Q But in terms of the routes that we brought
forward, the preferred and Alternative Route 1, the
l'i nks, the sections of those routes that we are | ooking
at as they inpact the property south of the data
centers, those were all included and nenbers of the
public had an opportunity to conment upon those. Wat
they didn't see was the new route design or project
design that then pushed portions of the project onto the
data center canpuses, is that right?

A (BY MR PETRY) Yes.

Q Ckay. And so if soneone, a nenber of the public
had a | arge concern or wanted to comment on these
sout hern portions, say on the preferred route, 1 and 7,
or as to Alternative Route 1, what becane 9 and 10,
those |links were there and they were avail abl e for
comment and they saw t hose?

A (BY MR PETRY) Yes. And, in fact, what we
tried to do, the reason we have these individual |ink
nunbers identified is, in order to carry those through
the entire process, at that tinme of the public open
house neeting and the newsletter that | identified the
publ i c open house neeting, those |link nunbers were
identified in the sane nanner you see here so that an
i ndi vi dual could see how those |ink nunbers are carried
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forward or not throughout the process.

One of the things we also did at the public open
house neeting was we had a G S workstati on set up so
t hat nenbers of the public could coment; through Googl e
Earth, take a closer | ook at where these |links nay be
| ocated relative to their properties.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Wodall.

MEVMBER WOODALL: Did you naintain copies of
email or witten comments or conments on your website
and any responses thereto? And if so, why aren't they
in the application? | know M. Gentles has sone
expertise in this area and he nay have sone further
questions in that regard. But why weren't they in here?

MR. PETRY: Menber Wodall, yes, we did. And
there were fewer than, | think, 10 conmment forns
recei ved during that process --

MEMBER WOODALL: Holy noly.

MR. PETRY: ~-- all wth individual comenters'
names and contact information included on them W felt
that was nore information than needed to be included in
the application relative to those individuals' nanmes and
| ocati ons. But we have copies of those and are
certainly happy to share themwith the Committee.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Gentl es.

MEMBER GENTLES: As it relates to those
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comments, | nean we don't really care about emails and
personal identifying information. | amjust -- we are
just looking for, even if it is 10, next tine it m ght

be a thousand, we certainly would just |ike to see what
t hose comments surnount to and the responses --

MR. PETRY: Certainly.

MEMBER GENTLES: -- as it relates to the breadth
of the outreach. So if you sent out -- how many mailers
did you say you sent?

MR, PETRY: Over 13, 000.

MEMBER GENTLES: And you got 10 responses --

MR. PETRY: Approxinmately --

MEMBER CGENTLES: -- did you say?

MR. PETRY: Sorry to interrupt.

Approxi mately 10 conment forns were received at
t he open house neeting. And since then, and since the
second newsl etter that provided notice of this week's
hearing went out, in total we have received
approximately 20 or so comments. There were
approximately 13 people, | think 13, that signed in at
t he public open house neeting as well. So relative to
t he nunber of mailings sent out, it was pretty |ow
att endance.

MEMBER CGENTLES: Again, it helps context for ne.
| amsure it does for the rest of the Commttee.
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CHWN. CHENAL: Let ne suggest -- ny tiner that
pl ays that wonderful Notre Dane fight song, that was 90

m nutes ago. We would like to take a break at 90

m nut es.
MEMBER NCLAND: M. Chairman, | can't hear you.
CHW. CHENAL: | think it is tinme to take a
break. | amafraid to get too close to the m crophone.
But | think we have been -- we are a little over 90

mnutes, so let's take a 15-m nute break. We wll
resune -- we have our public comment at 5:30, so we w ||
go as long as we want to and then we will break again
before the public hearing. GCkay? Take a 15-m nute

br eak.

(A recess ensued from4:32 p.m to 4.:56 p.m)

CHWN. CHENAL: All right. Let's get back on the
record.

I think when we left, M. Larsen had a little
bit of testinony left. And then at sone point | think
before we break for the evening, and then we wll resune
wth the public, you know, coment session |ater, |
think off line Ms. Benally and | discussed a flyover
presentation. And then let's discuss the tour tonorrow
so we are clear on timng.

So unl ess there is anything we shoul d di scuss
before that, | wll just turn it back to the applicant
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to finish up M. Larsen or whatever questions they have
wth the panel.

VMR. DERSTI NE: Thank you, M. Chairnan.
BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q M. Larsen, the next topic for you is going to
be project cost and facilities. But before |I nove to
that, | guess | wanted to close the loop in terns of
this discussion that we were having about the preferred
and Alternative Route 1, and discussions with the
under |l yi ng | andowners about those two routes.

What | understand from your testinony is that
di scussions with the underlying | andowner as well as the
farm operator on both the preferred and Alternative
Route 1, and | guess at the end of the day if we get a
strong indication that they want Alternative 1 instead

of the preferred, that's a route that APS can support

and build. |Is that a fair statenent?
A (BY MR LARSEN) That is a fair statenent, yes.
Q But it continues to be our viewin ternms of

I npacts and, you know, the best route for serving the
project, as well as visual inpacts and the other types
of inpacts beyond just the | andowner, that the preferred

route i s probably the best route?

A (BY MR LARSEN) Yes, | agree with that
st at enent .
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Q Ckay. So let's talk cost and facilities. |
t hi nk you have got a slide that sunmarizes the cost for

t he project.

A (BY MR LARSEN) GCkay. Yeah.
Q Just wal k us through those nunbers kind of on a
high Il evel. You have got the chart on the left. But

kind of | ooks |ike you have got them broken down by
ri ght-of-way cost, construction cost, and then total
cost conparison between the preferred -- the three
routes. Just touch on those.

A (BY MR LARSEN) Yes. And the chart on the left
is included in the application and was taken out of the
appl i cation.

R ght-of -way costs range from 1.47 mllion,
whi ch was for our preferred route, up to 2.37 mllion
for the Alternative Route 2. And the Alternative
Route 1 is in between there. And if you |look at the
table, Alternative Route 1, that is about 1.62 mllion
for right-of-way.

Construction costs for the preferred route are
about 2.65 mllion; for Alternative Route 2,

4.1 mllion. So the total cost with right-of-way and
construction -- and this is only for the transm ssion
line, nothing else -- would be 4.12 mllion for the

preferred route. And junping over to the table for a
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mnute for Alternative Route 1, it is 4.63 mllion, and
Alternative Route 2 is 6.47 mllion.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Wodall.

MEMBER WOODALL: M. Larsen, could you explain
to us how you or APS arrives at estimated ri ght-of -way
costs. Are they based on individual appraisals of
particul ar parcels, or on sone other basis? And if so,
could you tell us about that.

MR. LARSEN. Yes. It is based on a recent
apprai sal that we had done of |land out there, and it is
conpar able value to the price that the WI dcat had paid
for the property there.

MEMBER WOODALL: Thank you, sir.

CHMN. CHENAL: Menber Nol and.

MEMBER NOLAND: M. Chairman, M. Larsen, are
you having the right-of-way given to you by M crosoft
and the other data center, or are you having to purchase
that right-of -way?

MR. LARSEN. It is ny understandi ng that they
wll give us that right-of-way; we wll not be
purchasing it.

MEMBER NCLAND: So the 1.47 mllion is just for
the two southern portions of that |ine?

MR. LARSEN: That is correct.

MEMBER NOLAND: Is that over a period of tine?
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MR. LARSEN: No. That's a one-tine easenent
cost, and | believe that was based on 75 percent of full
mar ket value for a 120-foot strip.

MEMBER NOLAND: Ckay. Thank you.

BY MR DERSTI NE:
Q Anyt hi ng el se that you wanted to point out or

hi ghli ght on the cost figures, M. Larsen?

A (BY MR LARSEN) No, | have nothing el se.
Q Ckay. Well, let's talk about the structures
t hen.

CHWMN. CHENAL: Just one, excuse ne, one
foll ow up questi on.

MR, LARSEN:  Sure.

CHWN. CHENAL: For the preferred route, the
total cost then would be 4.12 mllion?

MR. LARSEN. That's correct.

CHWN. CHENAL: That would just be the cost for
the transm ssion line and the right-of-way on the
private property?

MR. LARSEN. That's the total cost for the
transm ssion line even on the Mcrosoft property.

CHWN. CHENAL: Ckay.

MR. LARSEN. But the right-of-way is only for
the private.

CHWN. CHENAL: Thank you for the clarification,
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yes. Thank you.
BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q And agai n, exclusive of costs for substations,
correct?
A (BY MR LARSEN) That's correct. |t does not

i ncl ude the substation cost.

Q All right. Now let's talk facilities.

A (BY MR LARSEN) For this project we are going
to use the steel nopnopoles and al so sonme Hfrane
structures. The Hfranes would al so be steel poles and
steel framng. The Hfranes will mainly be used to
cross over the existing facilities, our 69kV line on the
south side of Broadway, as well as the WAPA
doubl e-circuit 230kV Iine on the north side of Broadway.

And these structures, the reason we woul d be
using the Hfranes is due to the proximty to the
airport and the height restrictions. By using an
H-frane, and putting the phases in a horizontal fashion,
we can cross over wth |lower structures overall and
still neet the required clearance. For the nobst part
t he ot her pol es woul d be nonopol es.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Wodall.

MEMBER WOODALL: Excuse nme, M. Larsen, but is
there any particul ar segnents of the routes where you
are nore sure that a nonopol e would be or where an
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H-frane would be, or is that still up to design?

MR. LARSEN. We have not finalized the design,
but it is nmy understanding other than on the -- if we
went back to the preferred route, or actually Link 1,
which is commpon to all the routes, | believe we w |
have two H-frane structures, and then cross over and
t hen have one H-frane on the Mcrosoft site or on the
Wl dcat site.

We woul d use nopnopol es crossing between the two
project sites, and then we would have an Hfrane on the
Cycl one property on the north side of the WAPA |ine, and
another Hframe on the south side of Broadway Road. And
then it would be nonopoles other than that, is ny
under st andi ng.

MEMBER WOODALL: You are an engi neer, SO you are
really good with nunbers. So how many structures tota
is the project? Let's assune it is the preferred route.

MR. LARSEN. Let's see. | would guess maybe 12
or 13 structures in total.

MEMBER WOODALL: Thank you. | appreciate that
i nformed guessti mat e.

MR. LARSEN: Again, we have not done fi nal
detail .

MEMBER WOODALL: | appreciate your inforned
guesstimate, sir. Thank you.
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CHWN. CHENAL: M. Larsen, the WAPA line, is it
the green or the blue?

MR. LARSEN: The WAPA line is this blue line on
the north, the north side. The green line is our 69kV
i ne.

CHWN. CHENAL: Can we go back to the structures,
t he nmonopole, the Hfrane. Tell ne again why that's --
for crossing the WAPA |ine, they all seemto be the sane
hei ght, so why is the Hfrane better for crossing the
WAPA | i ne?

MR. LARSEN: The structures shown here show the
range of 130 to 190 feet. The difference, if you wanted
to conpare here, you will see the three phases. This
phase is much lower. 1In order to get that phase high
enough to cross over the line, that pole or structure
woul d have to be consi derably higher than what an
Hfranme structure would be. Does that hel p?

CHWN. CHENAL: GCkay. | see. | was actually not
| ooking at that, the m ddle one, but the one on the
left. | guess that's still --

MR. LARSEN: Sane thing.

CHWN. CHENAL: | guess it is, the Hfrane still
gi ves you a higher clearance, so that's the reason for
it --

MR. LARSEN:  Yes.
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CHWN. CHENAL: -- without extending the |ength
of the total structure. Ckay, thanks.

MR. LARSEN:. Right. So the range of heights is
130 to 190. Prelimnary design and what we believe is
about a worst case is around 180 feet to cross over the
WAPA [ine. And initial results with FAA do not -- it
appears that that is conpatible wth the Phoeni x
Goodyear Airport restrictions.
BY MR DERSTI NE:

Q And we are going to cover the FAA conmmuni cati ons
later in your testinony, right?

A (BY MR LARSEN) That's correct.

Q So the span |l engths, | am wondering, one of the
t hi ngs we have tal ked about in terns of the nunmber of
structures and the inpacts to that, the land to the
south, it appears we have a fair anount of variability
t hat you can adjust the span |lengths. And tal k about
how that's done, or if that's better for M. Spitzkoff
to do that, whoever can speak to how we use the span
lengths in order to mnimze inpacts of a project.

A (BY MR LARSEN) Otentines the span length is
based on the angles or turns that the structures m ght
take. So if you have nultiple angles, they are going to
be shorter span | engths.

I n general, though, just like, for exanple,
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goi ng straight north on one of our alternatives, you can
get | onger span | engths, but you may have to go slightly
hi gher pol es.

Also, if a route was chosen where we had to
rebuild the existing 69 with a -- 230 with a 69
under bui l d, generally those would be shorter spans
because the 69kV can't span as far as the 230. | don't
know i f that hel ps.

Q Yeah.

M. Spitzkoff, did you have sonething to add
t her e?

A (BY MR SPI TZKOFF) Yeah. M. Larsen touched on
it. | just want to enphasi ze generally there is a
trade-of f between height and span | ength. The | onger
t he span |l ength, generally the taller, the higher the
poles will be.

Q So the further the project or the route gets
fromthe airport, we are able to use taller structures
W t hout inpacting the airport operations, and that woul d
all ow us to have | onger span | engths?

A (BY MR LARSEN) That's correct.

Q Anyt hing el se you want to add you think is
important to note for the Commttee with regard to the
structures that we plan to use?

A (BY MR LARSEN) No, not at this tine.

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 183 VOL | 09/24/2019 136

Q VWhat wll the finish be on the nonopol es and the
H-frames?

A (BY MR LARSEN) | amsorry. Wat was that?

Q The pole finish. Are they using Corten? What

sort of finish are we using on these structures?

A (BY MR LARSEN) | don't know that we tal ked
about that. However, | believe in the area with the
exi sting other transm ssion |lines, probably we would be
gal vani zed and not the Corten.

Q Ckay.

A (BY MR LARSEN) | believe they would probably
blend in better.

MR. DERSTINE: | think unless the Conm ttee has
nore questions -- yeah, Menber Wodall.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Wodall.

MEMBER WOODALL: Can you provide nore detail in
the record about what the difference is between the two,
because | am not sure people reading the record would
know.

MR. LARSEN. Yes. The gal vani zed -- and they
are a dull galvanized finish -- are the standard steel
nonopol es or structures you see in nost cases. Many
tinmes out in maybe a nore forested area or nore rural
area we would use the Corten, or it is also called
weat heri zed steel, which is kind of a rust col ored pole.
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It mmcs wood structures, if you wll. So if there was
exi sting wood structures, oftentines we woul d use those
weat hered steel structures to blend in.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Nol and.

MEMBER NCLAND: Thank you.

M. Derstine, could you pull that m crophone a
little closer. | know you are a little shy about it, ne
too, but I amnot able to hear sone of your comments.

MR. DERSTINE: All right. | apol ogize.

Al right. | think that waps up M. Larsen's
presentation for the tine being on -- we have covered
the project devel opnent as well as the costs and the
facilities.

I think the next portion of our presentation is
to allow M. Petry to wal k us through our flyover
simulation, if that works for you, M. Chairnan.

CHWVN. CHENAL: | think that's fine.

FURTHER DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY M5. BENALLY:

Q Are you ready to proceed, M. Petry?
A (BY MR PETRY) Yes.
Q Before you start, would you pl ease just touch on

briefly how this sinmulation that you prepared, EPG
prepared, was prepared, and how the structures and the
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| andscapes, that sort of stuff, was created, to give the
Conmm ttee an understanding of what it would look like to

fly over the project.

A (BY MR PETRY) Yes. So what you will see in a
nonent in the virtual tour or Google flyover will be a
novi ng i mage of existing aerial imagery. It will show

the existing | andscape within the project area. W wll
hi ghlight the data center parcels. W wll identify
sone exi sting boundaries in the area, as well as the

exi sting transm ssion infrastructure and project
conponents.

And in order to devel op these, what we do is we
take that existing aerial inagery, as well as the
prelimnary design infornmation provided by APS in
generally a CAD, or conputer 3-D nodel form and would
overlay that onto the aerial imagery from Google Earth.

W woul d then, through Google Earth and ot her
softwares, set a canmera view ng angle that woul d then
pan fromeast to the north and then over to the -- | am
sorry, fromthe west to the north and over to the east
to give you an overview of each of the project
alternatives.

And the way we will proceed with this is
starting wth, again, identifying sone of the features
wthin the area. Then we wll start with the preferred
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route, to give you an overview of that, go to the
Alternative Route No. 1, and then do the sane for
Alternative Route No. 2.

So what you see here is the project study area.
This is a two-nmle buffer off of the alternatives. And
we will zoomin a little closer and gi ve you an overvi ew
of the region.

Now, you can see in orange the Wldcat site. To
the east of that in blue would be the Cycl one data
center site. To the north of those facilities is the
Phoeni x Goodyear Airport. To the south is Broadway
Road, and to the east is Litchfield Road.

South of those facilities are the existing
transm ssion infrastructure. You can see the utility
corridor here further to the south approxinmately half a
mle, as well as the infrastructure al ong Broadway Road.
Now shown are the TS-15 and TS-18 substations within the
data center sites.

Now, what we have done is zoonmed down a little
closer. You can see slightly out of the southern
portion of this view the existing PalmValley to Rudd
transm ssion line which runs roughly in this |ocation
here. The location identifying the western portion of
the preferred route would be the southern portion of
Link 1. And this is the location where it would
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interconnect to the PalmValley to Rudd transm ssi on
line. These alignnents shown now are the conceptua
alignnents that are shown on the project maps you have
in front of you.

Now di spl ayed is the proposed corridor that we
have seen for the preferred route. W wll zoomin
cl oser and you can again see the turning structures on
the existing PalmValley to Rudd line, this |ocation
her e.

Il wll pause for a nonent. And what you can see
is, again, Link No. 1 which extends north fromthe Pal m
Valley to Rudd transm ssion |line, runs along the western
boundary of the parcel we di scussed previously, crosses
over the existing 69kV line on the south side of
Broadway Road, as well as the existing 230kV line on the
north side of Broadway Road.

Q M. Petry, could | get you to pause a nonent and
poi nt out the WAPA |ine that was di scussed earlier and
where the potential Hframe structures could potentially
be pl aced.

A (BY MR PETRY) Yes. Those H-frane structures
that M. Larsen described, as he indicated, would
primarily be | ocated at the crossing points of the WAPA
line, or Broadway Road. There would be an Hfrane
structure in this location here right south of Broadway
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Road there, and an Hframe structure on the north side
of Broadway within the Wl dcat data center site. And
there is also an Hframe structure | ocated further south
of Broadway Road in this particular |ocation here.

Agai n, as we nove further north along Links 1
and 2, these links are going to be common to all project
alternatives. And what you can see fromthis |ocation
is a residence located to the west of the alignnent
shown here. This is the |ocation that we have
identified as the highest visual inpact for the project,
a high visual inpact to that residence in this |location.
That is al so displayed on the back of your placemat.

And, you know, as | get further into ny
testinony tonorrow, | can provide you nore on those
vi sual simul ati ons, how t hose were conpl eted and what
they include. For this point | just wanted to point out
that | ocati on does correspond with the simul ation
i ncl uded on your placemat.

As we nove further north you can see where the
preferred route Links 1 and 2 connect into the TS-15
substation |location within the Wl dcat data center site.
The preferred route would then exit the TS-15 substation
and travel to the east, crossing the Wl dcat data center
parcels and then connect into the TS-18 substation
wthin the Cyclone data center site.
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Fromthat | ocation, the project preferred route
woul d extend south. And this is, again, a |ocation
where the Hfranme structures would be used in order to
cross over the existing WAPA 230kV transm ssion |ine,
north of Broadway and south of Broadway. Again, in
addition to the 230kV line north of Broadway Road, there

Is an existing 69kV |line on the south side of Broadway

Road.
Q M. Petry, could | get you to pause just a
nmonent. | believe this goes to Commttee Menber

Woodal | ' s question regardi ng the nunber of structures
that would be in the area that crossed that particul ar
area. And this sinmulation is indicating one structure
in that area, is that correct? Am| seeing that
correctly, or is there nore?

A (BY MR PETRY) | believe this is showi ng two
structures. There is a structure slightly south of
Broadway Road that nay be a little bit difficult to make
out in this sinmulation. But there would be a structure
sout h of Broadway Road and then further south of
Br oadway Road.

Per M. Larsen's and M. Spitzkoff's testinony
previously, | think through working with the | andowners
in these |location and adjusting span |l engths to the
extent feasible, that structure nunber could potentially
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be reduced.

Q Thank you.

A (BY MR PETRY) The preferred route would then
extend further south and reconnect back into the
existing PalmValley to Rudd transmission line in this
general | ocation.

What we show now woul d be the conceptua
alignnent for Alternative Route 1. Again, Alternative
Route 1 is going to have Links 1 and 2 in commbn with
the preferred route.

We are now showi ng the proposed corri dor
associated with the Alternative Route 1. W wll zoom
in further again, and you can see where the existing
PalmValley to Rudd transmission line is | ocated we have
three turning structures here that are existing.

Link 1 would, again, travel north along the
western boundary of this existing agricultural field,
crossing over the 69kV |line, crossing over Broadway Road
and and the existing WAPA 230kV transm ssion |ine,
eventual |y connecting into the TS-15 substation wthin
the Wl dcat data center site. Alternative Route 1 would
then travel east through the Wl dcat data center site,
as was done with the preferred route, and woul d connect
into the TS-18 substation.

Wiere Alternative Route 1 differs fromthe
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preferred route is in this |ocation here further east
and south of the Cyclone data center site. As the
Alternative Route 1 exits the TS-18 substation, it would
agai n cross over the WAPA 230kV transmi ssion |ine, cross
to the south side of Broadway Road, and travel east

al ong the southern alignnent of Broadway Road.

Once it got to the alignnent of Litchfield Road,
which is indicated here, Alternative Route 1 would then
extend south and connect into the Pal m Vall ey-Rudd
transm ssion |ine.

Q M. Petry, just to clarify for the record, what
you are referring to or what we have up on the screen
woul d be Alternative Route 1, and the two |inks you just
di scussed are Links 9 and 10, is that correct?

A (BY MR PETRY) That is correct. The link
| ocated on the south side of Broadway Road is shown as
Link 9, and the portion that would then extend south
along the alignnent of Litchfield Road is Link 10.

We are now di spl ayi ng the conceptual alignnents
of Alternative Route 2. And again, as described
previously by M. Spitzkoff and M. Larsen, the nain
di fference between Alternative Route 2 and the preferred
and Alternative Route 1 would be that those provide the
separate, distinct interconnections for the TS 15
substation on the Wldcat site and the TS-18 substation
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on the Cyclone site. You can see where in the centra
portion of the project area here wll be identified on
your placenents as Links 4 and 7 are | ocated extendi ng
north and sout h.

We have not devel oped a proposed corri dor
associ ated wwth Alternative Route 2, so we won't show
that at this particular flyover.

As with the preferred route and Alternative
Route 1, Links 1 and 2 would travel north along the
west ern boundary of the agricultural fields here and
into the TS-15 substation in this |ocation.

Alternative Route 2, instead of traveling east
across the Wldcat data center site, would in this
| ocation travel directly south, crossing over the WAPA
230 line, crossing over Broadway Road, and woul d t hen
travel east along the south side of Broadway Road and
woul d be collocated with the existing 69kV lines in that
| ocation. It would then travel south in between two
resi dence | ocations on the south side of Broadway Road
at that l|ocation, and eventually make its way back down
due south, tying back into the Pal m Vall ey-Rudd
transm ssion line at this | ocation.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Haeni chen.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: [|If you could stop for a
mnute. Waat is, roughly, the distance fromthe line to
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each of those residences?

MR. PETRY: In this particular |location, the
l'ink would be identified as the southern portion of
Li nk 18 on sub route -- pardon ne, Alternative Route 2.
In this |location, the 230 line, or the proposed |ine,
woul d be collocated with the existing 69 |lines, which
travel through the front yards of those residences.

W will now take a view further to the east, and
you can see the second conponent of Alternative Route 2,
where it would connect into and out of the TS-18
substation within the Cycl one data center site.

And | wll go ahead and pause it here. Wat you
can see at this |location closest to us would be Link 7
as identified in Alternative Route 2. And this would
provi de the connection fromthe Palm Valley to Rudd
transm ssion line crossing north across the agricultural
fields in this location, crossing over the existing 69kV
| i ne, crossing over Broadway Road, and again crossing
over the WAPA 230kV transm ssion |line and entering into
the TS-18 substati on.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Nol and.

MEMBER NCLAND: M. Chairman, on both this and
t he previous flyover for the preferred route you are
show ng those lines quite a bit to the east of the
corridor section quarter. |Is that on purpose, or are
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you going to try and | ocate as close to that road and
quarter section |line as possible?

MR. PETRY: That is not on purpose. And we w ||l
try to locate as close to those quarter or quarter
quarter section lines as possible. This information is
nodel ed based on very prelimnary design, and, as such,
you know, is not in the specific or exact |ocation as
woul d be desired.

MEMBER NCLAND: Thank you.

MR. PETRY: \What we can see fromthis | ocation
now is, again, as the Alternative Route 2 would exit the
TS-18 substation, it would cross over the existing
transm ssion infrastructure, cross over Broadway Road,
and be collocated again with the existing 69kV |ine on
the south side of Broadway Road. It would then extend
to the south along the alignnent of Litchfield Road and
connect back into the PalmValley to Rudd transm ssi on
i ne.

What we show now woul d be what we were
considering calling Alternative Route 2 with sub route.
And just to rem nd you what this would entail, if you
| ook at the maps in front of you on your placemat, in
pl ace of Links 4 and 7, Link 6 would be included with
this sub route. And that would renove those north and
sout h extensions through the ag fields in these
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| ocati ons and woul d, instead, be collocated al ong the
south side of Broadway Road wth the existing 69kV
i nes.

You can again see Links 1 and 2 as they would
extend fromthe PalmValley to Rudd transm ssion |ine.
And these links again are commpn to all project
alternatives. You can see where Links 1 and 2 would
then connect into the TS-15 substation within the
W dcat data center site.

As our canera angle here turns, you can see
where the transm ssion |ine would then extend south out
of the TS-15 substation crossing the WAPA |ine, crossing
Br oadway Road, and woul d then extend east al ong the
south side of Broadway Road coll ocated again with the 69
line in that |ocation.

The line would travel east and then connect
traveling north back into the TS-18 substation within
the Cyclone site. You can then see fromthis |ocation
where Alternative Route 2 with a sub route woul d ext end
sout h, again crossing the WAPA | i nes, crossing Broadway
Road, and again be collocated with the existing 69kV
line in this |location.

Alternative Route 2 with sub route woul d then
travel in a southward direction along the alignnment of
Litchfield Road and connect back into the Palm
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Val | ey- Rudd transm ssion |ine.

BY M5. BENALLY:
Q Does that conclude the flyover, M. Petry?
A (BY MR PETRY) Yes.

MS. BENALLY: Chairman Chenal, if there aren't
any ot her questions fromthe Conmttee, | wll |eave it
to your discretion how you would like to nove forward
regarding the route itinerary.

CHMN. CHENAL: Yeah, let's tal k about the
itinerary, the route itinerary. And | will tell you
when you cone back fromthe tour it m ght be good to run
the virtual tour one nore tine, but just run it, not
stop it, just runit. It is helpful to have your
description, but | think when we see it tonorrow and
then in person and then on the tour, and then see the
flyover, |I think that will make it all come together
t hat nmuch better.

G ven that the public hearing is supposed to
start now, let's do a very just short version of the
summary of the tour. And then we need to tal k about
timng, howlong it is going to take and when we start
up the hearing, you know, after.

MR. DERSTINE: | think M. Petry can give us
that short sunmary of the route tour, and in the
meanti ne maybe we wll hand out to nenbers of the

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 183 VOL | 09/24/2019 150

Commttee what we have in terns of the itinerary and the
map.

CHWN. CHENAL: Thank you.

MR. DERSTINE: W have got anot her one of our
gi ant maps for you here.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Wodall.

MEMBER WOODALL: Speaking of giant maps, | was
wondering if | could prevail upon M. Petry to show us a
reduced versi on of what m ght be a potential Exhibit A
in black and white. And | amgoing to ask you to use
your professional judgnent to determne if perhaps the
font should be enlarged for purposes of legibility if
the map is presented in that particular format, because
if it is on Docket Control, that's how people are going
to see it.

So if you wouldn't mnd doing that, and if you
think the font should be enlarged for legibility,
because | don't want to, say, substitute ny judgnent
because | have bad eyesight, so that would be hel pful
for me, sir.

MR. PETRY: Menber Wodall, we have devel oped
such a map, a --

MEMBER WOODALL: Wonder f ul .

MR. PETRY: -- smaller 8 and a half by 11 bl ack
and white form |In addition to the font style or size,
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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we were concerned about the legibility of the differing

colors for those corridors as well.

MEMBER WOCDALL: | was going to ask you that.
MR. PETRY: | think what we have produced does
the trick well. W wll take another | ook at that, that

it neets the needs of Docket Control.

MEMBER WOODALL: | am nore worried about the
peopl e who m ght want to look at it. But thank you very
much for thinking ahead. | appreciate that.

CHWN. CHENAL: | think we can have a di scussi on,

you know, tonmorrow or the next day about the exhibit. |
don't know that we are precluded fromhaving it in color
because it is filed electronically. | nean it is filed
and anyone that |l ooks at it online in the docket, it
comes up in color. So | don't -- Menber Wodall is
saying it doesn't but I don't know But if it is filed
in color -- well, let's talk about it at the appropriate
time.

So let's tal k about the summary, a short summary
of the itinerary, and then we w |l tal k about the
tim ng.

MR. PETRY: Certainly.

CHWN. CHENAL: M. Petry.

MR. PETRY: Thank you, M. Chairman. | wl|
| eave out sone of the discussion about the particul ar
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roads we travel on the way, and we wll identify the
stop | ocati ons.

The first stop would be indicated with the red
stop sign No. 1, which would be | ocated on West
La Estrella. And that would be directly west of the
proposed TS-15 substation. Fromthat |ocation, we wll
get a view of the existing 69kV conmponents of that
substation, as well as the area where the 230kV
conmponent s woul d be proposed.

Fromthat |ocation, we would travel to Stop
No. 2 identified on the southwest corner of the Cyclone
data center site, but on the south side of Broadway
Road. And that is the |ocation where we have identified
t hose high visual inpacts to one residence, the | ocation
that's shown on your placenents as well. This will give
you a good view not only of the data center sites
t hemsel ves and the existing transm ssion infrastructure
wthin the region, but the location of Links 1 and 2
where they would travel north and south at that
| ocati on.

W woul d then propose to stop at stopping point
3 identified right here. And that is in between two
resi dences |l ocated on the south side of Broadway Road.
That woul d provide us with a good view not only of the
exi sting 69kV infrastructure on Broadway Road, but also
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where Alternative Route 2 would extend south between
t hose resi dences.

We woul d then propose to nove further east to
Stop No. 4, which would be, again, on the south side of
Br oadway Road, roughly at the property |ine between the
Cycl one and Wl dcat data center sites. This would,
again, provide you with a view of where Alternative
Route 2 woul d extend south, but also a view of the Link
No. 7 associated with the preferred route as well.

That's at the location of that roadway that we
had di scussed previously.

We woul d then propose to nove further east to
Stop No. 5, which would be at the intersection of
Broadway and Litchfield Road. This wll provide a good
view of Links No. 9 and 10, as well as the existing
transm ssion infrastructure in that area. It wll also
provide you with a view of the existing PalmValley to
Rudd transm ssion |ine and where that easternnost
i nterconnect would be relative to Alternative Route 1
and Al ternative Route 2.

And | astly, we would want to stop at Stop No. 6,
which is |located at the intersection of Litchfield Road
and Lz2 Ranch Road, al so known as Riverside Drive.

And this is the |ocation where we heard froma
nunber of nenbers of the public. There are a group of
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residents | ocated at that particular |ocation that
expressed the desire to nove the distribution |ine
alternatives further to the west. And so fromthat

| ocation, we will have a view of the existing

transm ssion infrastructure. You will also have a view
of the existing data center facility, or existing
building within the Cyclone data center site which is
further to the north of the Cyclone site.

And fromthere you can al so have a vi ew across
to the west and see sone of the conponents associ at ed
with the TS-15 substation that are in place today. From
Stop No. 6 we would then propose to return here to the
Confort Suites.

CHWN. CHENAL: And how | ong do you believe the
tour will take?

MR, PETRY: W are estimating approximtely two
hours or so, depending on how | ong the di scussi on m ght
be at each of those stops. W have chartered a bus to
allow all Commttee nmenbers to see things froma
slightly elevated position. W, in sone of those
| ocati ons, have proposed to actually exit the bus if
desired, but in sone |ocations, based on avail abl e space
adj acent to the roadway, we woul d propose that we stay
on the bus where we do still have a better view or
vant age poi nt.
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CHWN. CHENAL: Ckay. And standard request is
that, when we stop at the points of interest, that we do
typically ask sone questions. But we can also, just as
a courtesy to Colette, kind of hold sone of the
questions. Wen we cone back we can get -- when we get
back on the record we wll tal k about that when that
IS -- we can get into nore discussion, answer nore
questions about what we saw. It is just hard for her in
the field to take everything down.

So all right. Wth that, if we start the tour
at 9:00 -- and thank you for that, M. Petry. If we
start the tour at 9:00 a.m and it is going to take two
hours plus, we don't |eave exactly at 9:00, | think I
woul d prefer to have a set tine when the hearing resunes
and not just leave it w de open, because not every
menber of the Committee is going to be on the tour, and
the public may not do the tour, so | think we would
rather set a time when we resune the hearing. The
applicant is providing breakfast and -- correct,
br eakf ast and | unch?

MR, DERSTI NE: Yes.

CHWN. CHENAL: Okay. So breakfast would be from
8:00 to 9:00 or sonething along those lines, or 8:30 to
9: 007

MR. LARSEN. They shoul d be set up for breakfast
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around 7:30, 7:30 to 8:00, so we could get back and get
started around 9: 00.

CHWN. CHENAL: Ckay. And the breakfast is going
to be right next door, right?

MR LARSEN. It will be able to be set up right
out here in the hallway. And we have the two roons
there that the Commttee can sit in, and then we can sit
in the other room

CHWN. CHENAL: Al right. Perfect. So if we
assume we start at 9:00, 9:15, two hours roughly, 11:00
sonething. What tine is lunch set up for?

MR. LARSEN. | believe they plan on having it
set up around 11: 30, roughly 11:30 to 12:00.

CHWN. CHENAL: Ckay. 11:30 to 12:00.

MR. LARSEN: W were planning on hopefully
havi ng | unch over with and be able to start again around
1: 0O0.

CHWN. CHENAL: That sounds good. So | am kind
of inclined, but let me throwit out, kind of inclined
to say after the bus we cone back here, we then eat
| unch, maybe have a break, but we eat |unch and we
resune the hearing at 1:00. But | would like to take
the tenperature of the Commttee and the applicant.

MEMBER WOODALL: | vote aye.

CHWN. CHENAL: Well, any objections to that
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plan? | just think it is better to do that then say,
well, we will just cone back and resune the hearing,
because | don't think that's fair to the Commttee
menbers that aren't on the tour and | don't think it is
fair to the public. |If they want to show up, they don't

know what tine to be here.

So let's do that. Let's have the tour in the
nmorning. We will plan lunch at, you know, noon. And
then we will resune the hearing at 1:00.

MR. DERSTINE: W will have a nore firmstart
time in terns of when lunch will be avail abl e.

Just for clarification, the lunch wll be, for
this hearing and the participants in the hearing, be set
up here in the breezeway. | believe the hotel has its
own breakfast in the nornings. W w Il have a breakfast
here in the breezeway for nenbers of the Commttee.

And there is this board setup roomfor you to
adjourn to and have your breakfast. And then we wll --
| assune we can convene here in the hearing room before
we then, with sone final directions, before we get on
t he bus.

CHWN. CHENAL: That sounds good.

M. Enedi, we haven't heard much fromyou in
terms of cross-examnation. And it occurred to ne, |
don't know if it nmakes the nbst sense to wait until the
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concl usion of the testinobny for you to have
cross-exam nati on or whether, since the testinony is
bei ng presented in basically chapters, whether it m ght
be better to have sone cross-exan nation as we go al ong.
So | don't know if you have a preference. W wll ask
if the applicant is okay with that. Do you have a

pr ef erence?

MR EMEDI: | think it probably makes sense,
given that | don't anticipate having nmuch, as today I
didn't have any, so | think given that, | think it nakes

sense, if | do have a question, to just ask the question
when | have it, if that's all right wwth the applicant.

CHWN. CHENAL: GCkay. The applicant doesn't have
an objection, so we wll do that. |If you have a
question, just indicate it, and we will give you sone
| eeway there.

MR. EMEDI: Thank you.

CHWN. CHENAL: Like | said, when we cone back, |
think back to the hearing at 1:00, | think we wll have
any foll owup questions, you know, and discussi on of
what we saw at the points of interest. | think | would
like to see the flyover at that point one nore tine just
to run it through, because | think it wll be hel pful,
having seen it in person and see again the flyover, put
it in context. Then we can resune with the rest of the
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t esti nony.

Do you antici pate -- does the applicant
anticipate that we will finish tonorrow afternoon with
your panel, or do you think we will fall into Thursday?

MR, DERSTINE: | think there is a reasonably
good chance we would finish with our panel tonorrow
af t er noon.

CHWN. CHENAL: W don't have to, because we are
going to Thursday it |l ooks like in any event. So that
w il be fine.

So is there anything else we should discuss from
the Commttee's perspective before we cl ose the hearing,
we adjourn, get into the public conment section? Does
t he applicant have anything we should di scuss?

MR. DERSTI NE:  No.

CHWN. CHENAL: Al right. WlIl, let's adjourn,
take a five-m nute break, and then we wll resune with
the public comment, and we w || have that. Five

m nutes. Thank you.

(The hearing recessed at 5:43 p.m)
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(The eveni ng public coment commenced at 5:52
p.m Al parties, Chairman Chenal, Commttee Menbers
Pal nrer, Wodal |, Haeni chen, Drago, Gentles, Hamnay,

Nol and, and Ri ggi ns were present.)

CHWN. CHENAL: All right. Good eveni ng,
everyone. This is the tine set for the public coment
section of our hearing. And for the people that have
shown up to speak, ny nane is Tom Chenal, and this is
the Line Siting Conmttee. W are hearing the
application of APS for the WIdcat and Cycl one project.

We are interested in hearing any public conment
that the public wants to give this evening. |If you
would li ke to give public comment, | would ask you to
sign the sign-in sheet with the information requested.
That will allow us in the future, or the applicant, to
contact you in the event they seek certain changes to
the certificate of environnental conpatibility that they
are seeking in the application, if this Commttee grants
it. So it is inmportant we have the contact information.

So when you get up to the m crophone, if you
gi ve your nane and address. And, you know, we like to
keep the comments to three or five mnutes, but we are
interested in what you have to say.

So, sir, if you give your name, we wll begin
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W th you.
VMR AVATOR: Are we |ive?
CHWVN. CHENAL: You are |live.

MR AVATOR Yes. M nane is Fred Amator. |If
you | ook at your tour tonorrow, you will see No. 3.
That's exactly where | live. M address is 14247 \West

Broadway Road. And | have lived in that structure there
41 years, noved in July of 1978.

This gentl eman here nentioned this norning APS
started in Phoenix in 1886. Wll, ny grandfather was
born in Phoenix in 1885. So |looking at it that way, we
were there before APS was. But we are glad you are
t here because we need to turn on the |lights every once
in awhil e.

And several questions | listened to today, and I
did learn a lot. That's the reason | didn't get up
early. | didn't want to nake the m stake of not
learning all | could. And | had an option. | did go in

the hearing, | think, back the 19th of June and we had

sone input. And | do appreciate that. Brad, and
several others were there, | believe.
One thing | would like to start with, | would

like to rule out Alternative No. 2 right away. That's
not ny best interest. | don't think it is in the best
interest, and also the taxpayer. W are | ooking at
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about $2 mlIlion nore for that particular one. So ny
opinion would be to throw out Alternate No. 2.

Now, between the preferred and Alternate No. 1,
| could live with either one, but I was hoping it woul d
be able to keep the east-west |lines on the north side of
Broadway. That's a |lot |ess problemfor ne.

CHWN. CHENAL: So that would be the preferred
route, sir?

MR. AMATOR: That would be the preferred, that
woul d be the preferred.

Now, as | did -- as | nentioned on June 19th, |
asked that to be done. And basically the preferred
route does that. But the problemwth the preferred
route, in ny opinion, it goes right down one of ny
nei ghbors that | have known for nany years and farns
that land. And that invades sone of his property there.
He has a | ot of big trucks go down in there to haul sone
of his commobdities and things. And just it would be a
probl em for him

So kind of sticking together with ny nei ghbors
down there, there is only about three owners of the | and

between Litchfield Road and Bullard. And | happen to be

one. | think M. Rayner is one, and there is another
named M. Wagner. | don't believe M. Wagner is here
t oday.
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OCh, you are representing M. Wagner?

MR. BECKHAM No. | own anot her property just
west of Wagner.

MR. AVATOR  Ckay. Sorry about that.

Anyway, that's nmy main comments. Anybody has a
question to ne, probably be hone tonorrow norning. You
can cone by, have the coffee on, but..

CHWN. CHENAL: If you have cream

MR. AVATOR  Pardon ne?

CHWN. CHENAL: |If you have cream sone of us
w |l cone by.

MR. AMATOR: Cream and sugar if you like.

Real |y, though, | have |lines around ny house. |
have had them for many years. You will see them they
run right down Broadway. That's another one, | don't

want one on the right on Broadway.

One other thing -- | discussed this wth sone of
the other people -- there is going to be a water |ine
and a sewer |line go right down Broadway right on the
road, on the edges of the road. And that's going to
make that a very busy construction area here in the next
several nonths, not that that has anything to do with
siting these lines, just information that you m ght need
to be aware of.

I will turn ny tinme over.
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CHWN. CHENAL: Before you |eave, sir, would you
take the | aser pointer and just indicate to our group
where you live. | think I know where point 3 was. You
indicated Stop 3, but if -- don't look at it but just
push the button. There you go.

MR. AMATOR: That house -- | amshaky in old
age, but that is that house right there.

CHWN. CHENAL: All right. Thank you. Thank you
very much.

MR AMATOR And if you look on your tour, it is

CHWN. CHENAL: Thank you, sir, very much.

MR. AMATOR: Thank you for the opportunity.

CHWN. CHENAL: And you have your information on
the sign-in sheet, sir?

MR AVATOR Yes. It is right here.

CHWN. CHENAL: Do we have anot her speaker?

MR. RAYNER. Good eveni ng, nenbers of the
Commttee, M. Chairman. | am Ronald Rayner. |
represent our famly business, A Tunbling T Ranches.

Qur headquarters is just down the road to the west,
14929 West Broadway. It is not on the photo. W are to
the west. Bullard Road is where our headquarters is.

But we farmall of the land in that area. As a
matter of fact, we owned it at one tine. | sold Fred
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t he house that he bought 40 sonethi ng years ago.

But anyway, we have got a long history in the
area. And virtually all of the farmland that you see
on that aerial photograph we farm And | will tell you
that | also represent M. Wagner, Robert Wagner. And he
fell and broke his tooth or sonething and said that he
woul dn't be here tonight. But | was hopi ng he woul d be.

Probably ny reactions to the proposed line --

CHWN. CHENAL: May | ask you --

VMR. RAYNER: Yes, sir.

CHWN. CHENAL: -- M. \WAgner's property is
wher e?

MR. RAYNER Basically --

CHWN. CHENAL: |If you need a pointer, we can
gi ve you - -

MR RAYNER Am | doing it right? Just the
button. There it is.

Everyt hi ng south of Broadway -- oops -- down to
here, then over to there, then all the way down, so
except for this cutout here, then over to Litchfield
Road, so all of this, this ground in here, is
M. Wagner's. W |ease all of that fromhim and have
for many years. And we would like to continue farm ng
there for sone tine.

I will just tell you that -- you see all those
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four lines to the south of it. W owned that ground
back when those lines were put in. And | wll tell you,
it was -- those were difficult tines. | nean we didn't
like to see themthere. But, you know, they provide an
obstacle that nakes it really difficult to farmanytine
that you have towers in the mddle of a field.

And at | east for the |last couple of those |ines,
we at | east tal ked to whoever it was that was putting it
in, TG&E and the Bureau of Reclanmation was the first
one, and then a solar project, but at |east we tal ked
theminto putting towers as close to the edge of the
fields as they could, and that creates | ess of an
obst acl e.

But | will just tell you when you | ook at that
pi ece of ground -- and | tal ked with Bob Wagner about
this, and he is very concerned about, you know, soci al
i ssues and for the public good. And he said, you know,
if they need to put the lines up through there | guess,
you know, we wll take care of it. And he said |l wll
take care of you on the lease if they cause you any
damage.

And | said no, Bob, sonebody else is going to
pay ne damages if they damage. You are going to have
your property damaged because, you know, you don't have
a very big area there. |If that property ever gets
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devel oped, can you imagine if you had that Alternate 2
where you had four lines going up through there, trying
to do any pl anning around that nunmber of rights-of-way
that you can never build anything under? | nean they

m ght be good for a parking | ot or storage of sone kind.
But, so he understands that.

And the other thing | told him | said, you
know, if this was for public necessity, people needed it
to light their hones and everything, that would be one
thing. But that's not -- this is a private enterprise.
These guys need electricity to make noney with. That's
why they are buil ding buildings and running electricity
toit. So if anybody is going to shoul der the cost or
sone of the negative inpacts, it ought to be the people
that are building it that are the beneficiaries.

And | will tell you that for that reason, that's
why | would like -- the Alternate 1, | think, does the
| east anmount of danmage to M. WAgner's property, and
also to us as a grower. You know, even when you put a
pole along the side of a field, every tine you conme up
to that thing, you know, you have got dusters or
sprayers that are 120 feet wide, and every tine you cone
up to one of those things, you have got to do sonething
different. You have got to stop, reel it in, go past
it, put it back out.
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If you do that once or twice, that's one thing.
But | can tell you those |lines down bel ow, we have done
that every tinme now for the last 30 or 40 years, and you
do it seven or eight tines a year every tine you cone up
to that pole, you have got to do sonmething different.

And you know what? |t costs you noney. It
causes you a great deal of risk. W can't be sure that
all people that operate our equi pnment are very
observant. And because a |l ot of them have automatic
controls on them now, | suspect that sone of them nod
off at tines.

But, you know, it is an inpedinent, just |eave
it at that. But wth that Alternate 1, at | east you
have the two main |ines going on the edges of the
property. And where the nunber 10 is that's along the
Litchfield Road right-of-way, it can even be outside the
field. The Buckeye Irrigation District owns that |and
over there. They are actually not doing anything wth
it right now It is close to the river, probably has
limted ability to do sonething wth

But | talked to them They would be willing to
have it on their property. Were it is marked No. 9,
the only way, really, that | woul d approve havi ng that
is we have a -- right where that right angle corner is
made between 9 and 10, we have a well right there. You
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really don't want to put a power line right over the top
of a well. So you have to be careful. That existing
well that's there has the existing 69 and 12kV |i nes
goi ng over the top of it. But they are not right over
the top of it; they are strategically |ocated so they
are out of the way.

If you can do that with the 230 and still use
that sane right-of-way, that would be the best
alternative for us. Wiy? Because it is on the north
side of the concrete irrigation ditch, so it is out of
the way of the field. And it is -- that's right where
the existing line is.

So if those lines can all be conbi ned on that
set of poles, great. Then you can go across, Cross over
the Park Davis line to enter the project. And to ne
that's the nost fair way to treat that whol e thing,
because that nunber 14, the line, that connector |ine
bet ween the two substations, that goes on the
beneficiaries' own |and. So why shouldn't they have the
di srupti on of having the power |ine go by? Have it on
their land. That's where it ought to be.

| even brought up, when | was first approached
on this, about running that nunber 10 on a | ong angle
right at the corner, just go right across and cross the
WAPA |line just to the northwest a little bit of that
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corner. But it is kind of indicated that there is sone
ot her technical problems with that, but...

So having that line that's marked as 9 is a, you
know, is a good alternative as |long as you don't have to
put it in a new right-of-way south of Broadway, south of
the ditch. Because then you are creating nore obstacles
and i npedinents. But if you can hang all three of those
lines on that one line, that would be a, that would be a
good t hi ng.

One of the other things, you m ght | ook at that
nunber one |line there. You know, there is an existing
power |ine going fromBroadway to the south to a well.
There is a punp right there, the corner of those fields.
| don't know why that couldn't be hung on the other side
of the poles there, too, if you can do that. | don't
know if that's a 12kV line, if -- | don't know whet her
you can span themthat far or not running those.

But anyway, they are ol d wooden pole |ines that
woul d just nmake sense to hang those wres on that
sane -- fromthose pol es going back to Broadway where
the 69 and 12kV lines are. So that's ny pitch.

Nunber 2, no way, no how. It just doesn't nake
sense. Alternate 1 | think is the way to go. It causes
the least disruption, and it puts the line where it
ought to go, in between those on their own ground.
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Thank you.

CHWN. CHENAL: All right. Thank you, sir.

Let nme ask the applicant just some questions.
Segrment No. 9, is that on the south or north side of
Br oadway, according to your proposal ?

MR. SPI TZKOFF: That's on the south side of
Br oadway.

CHWN. CHENAL: GCkay. Thank you, sir, for your
comment s.

Anybody el se who would |i ke to speak?

Sir.

MR. BECKHAM Sure. M nane is David Beckham
and I own the property with a partner where your
nunber 1 is, not the nunber 1 |ine, but the nunber 1
itself. It is 40 acres, so | don't need to use the
poi nt er.

And | have been tal king back and forth with

Brad, and he has done a good job of keeping ne -- here
let ne do this -- keeping ne in informed. M nain
conmment is to make sure that line is sinply far away

fromthe residents that are on ny property so they don't
have any issues with the el ectronagneti c waves and all
that type of thing, because they live there.

CHWN. CHENAL: Can you point with a pointer, a
| aser pointer, where the residents are on your property.
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| don't see a house there.

MR. BECKHAM It is right about there, sane
t hi ng.

CHWN. CHENAL: By the bl ack?

MR. BECKHAM By the black. There you go. Now
just look to the left. There is a residence there.

CHWN. CHENAL: Ckay.

MR. BECKHAM They have been there quite awhil e.
They actually work for the folks right here. But they
are there, and we don't want to put themin any danger.

We tal ked about where to put that nunmber 1 I|ine,
just keeping it far enough away that all your studies
that are they are far enough away that those people
don't get injured. And so that's what we have been
t al ki ng about .

Anyway, | just wanted to nmake sure | have
regi stered. Because if there is four owners here, | am
one of the four.

CHWN. CHENAL: And you have put your information

on the --
MR. BECKHAM | am going to now, yeah
CHWN. CHENAL: Al right. Thank you very nuch,
sir.
Menber Wbodal | .
MEMBER WOODALL: | was wondering if the
COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
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applicant, during sonme of its presentation tonorrow,
coul d address sone of the proposed nodifications to the

route and/or structures that were raised by sone of the

public comrents today. |t would be helpful to ne to
understand that. | see nods. | see happy smling
f aces.

MR. LARSEN. Yes, | think that's appropriate
that we can do that.

MEMBER WOCDALL: Thank you very much,

M. Larsen.

MR. LARSEN. And especially in one that
M. Beckhamis talking, that's one of the stops and that
is one of the things that we wanted to tal k about.

MEMBER WOODALL: Great. Thank you so nuch.

CHWN. CHENAL: Very good. And | think a little
nore assistance with the well, and there is a
wor k-around the first gentl eman that was speaking --

MR. LARSEN. Yes. And | wll just address that
real quick, that | have been working with M. Rayner,
and we have tal ked about that. And | think it would be
appropriate to |l ook at where the 69kV line is now in
relationship to his well and tal k about whether we can
make t he 230kV work there without further inpacting
t hat .

CHWN. CHENAL: Very good. | neant to say second
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speaker. Yeah, that woul d be very hel pful.

MR. LARSEN. And that is one of our stops.

CHWN. CHENAL: Are there any other speakers this
eveni ng?

Yes, M. Haeni chen.

MEMBER HAENICHEN: | would like to thank the
peopl e who have -- | amsorry, | have got one nore, but
| would like to thank them | |earned a | ot tonight.

And that's why we do these sessions.

CHWN. CHENAL: Yeah. | think we all agree
that's very inportant. W |ove to hear the comments,
and it helps us wth our deliberations, | can assure
you.

Sir, if you give your nane and --

MR. GARDNER: You bet. M. Chairman, nenbers of
t he Comm ssion, ny nanme is Mke Gardner. | am here
representing Mcrosoft. And I just wanted to, nunber
one, thank you for the due diligence that you are
putting forward. This is an amazing process. | can
tell the hundreds of man-hours and the real
t hought ful ness that's going into this. And from ny
M crosoft's perspective, we greatly appreciate it.

We don't have an opinion on the routes to take,
but we do support APS in their desire to bring power to
our data center.
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The bi ggest problem we have so far with today's
hearing is you have an Apple device with a Google map to
tal k about a Mcrosoft project. But we can tal k about
that | ater.

But it shows the inportance where we are goi ng
wWth society and why the data center is critical. That
Appl e device didn't exist 10 years ago. Your i Phone
didn't exist 11 years ago. And now the internet of
things is everywhere. W use it all the tinme, and we
just think it is a magical cloud sonepl ace.

But that magical cloud is actually a data center
that drives everything that we do, from our internet
banking to how we drive around in cars. |In fact, if you
| ook up the internet of things, you will see a |list of
itens that you never thought would be connected to the
internet but are, fromny ring doorbell to nmy front door
l ock to even tractors that help for farmng. The
internet of things is enconpassi ng every aspect of our
wor | d.

In order for us to keep up wth that demand, we
need a sustai nabl e data center that we are pl anni ng on
buil ding in Goodyear. And when | say sustainable, we
are talking the nost efficient froman energy
perspective, as well as froma water perspective, of a
data center that M crosoft has ever built. And they
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want to build it here in Goodyear, Arizona. It is the
| at est technol ogy and next generation that we think wll
do the community proud.

What we have seen historically is | had -- we,
ny firmdoes a lot of work with PayPal. PayPal used
this phrase: Data centers are the train depot of the
21st century, neaning back in the 1800s everyone fought
for that train depot. Why? Because wherever the train
depot cane, that's where the commerce cane around it.
And we have seen that in Arizona so far

When PayPal first cane to Arizona, they started
wWwth a data center. Now they have 200 enpl oyees in
Scottsdale and in Chandler. Anerican Express, when they
cane to Phoenix, they started with a data center. Now
there is a thousand enpl oyees that work for Anerican
EXpr ess.

Now, | can't guarantee what is going to happen
wth the Mcrosoft data center, but what we have seen so
far is it creates additional jobs, creates additional
t axpayers, which just creates additional value for the
entire citizens of the State of Arizona.

So, M. Chairnman, happy to answer any questions
anybody m ght have about data centers. But thank you,
is our overall message. Thank you for your due
diligence and the tinme and your efforts that you are
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putting into this.
CHW. CHENAL: This is the opportunity for the
Committee to ask the questions. | don't nornmally do it

during public comment, but if the Commttee has any

questi ons.

Well, if we don't have any right now, | am sure
we wll think of sone tonorrow. You may not be here,
but the applicant will be. So we will -- one way or the

other | think they will be getting with you or --

MR. GARDNER:  They know how to reach ne.

CHWN. CHENAL: -- we will directly.

MR. GARDNER M. Pal ner knows how to reach ne
as well. You have got to watch out for M. Pal ner.

CHWN. CHENAL: Well, we actually have a couple
questions. Menber Hamnay, and then Menber Wodall .

MEMBER HAMMY: So i s noise an issue with these
data centers?

MR GARDNER:. M. Chairman, it historically has
been sonething that the conpany takes very seriously.
But the way this, the offsets, the way we have wor ked
wth the Cty of Goodyear and the offsets and offset off
the road, we don't believe that will be an issue on this
particul ar data center.

CHWN. CHENAL: Menber Wodall.

MEMBER HAMMY:  Ckay.

COASH & COASH, | NC. 602- 258- 1440
www. coashandcoash. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N L O

LS CASE NO. 183 VOL | 09/24/2019 178

MEMBER WOODALL: | amjust going to suggest,
M. Spitzkoff, that if you need to bone up anynore on
data centers, there is your man.

Thank you very much.

MR. GARDNER:  Thank you for your tine.

CHWN. CHENAL: All right. Thanks very nuch,
sir.

All right. That will -- any further questions
or comments fromthe public?

(No response.)

CHWN. CHENAL: Well, that will conclude the
public comment section of our hearing. | will ask the
applicant to take custody of the sign-in sheet, and we
w |l nake sure that gets filed with Docket Control so
that in the future if there is any, assumng a CEC i s
issued, if there is any changes to the CEC or
ext ensi ons, we al ways have you notify the peopl e that
showed up at public comment. That's the information how
you get ahold of them

So unless there is anything further fromthe

Committee, | don't think there is fromthe applicant, if
there is nothing further, then we will adjourn the
hearing this evening and we will neet here tonorrow at

9:00 a.m to reconvene.
MR. DERSTI NE: Thank you.
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CHWN. CHENAL: Thank you, everybody.

(The hearing recessed at 6:16 p. m)
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